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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
FNB Company and Subsidiaries
Livingston, Texas

We have audited the accompanyrng consolidated financial statements of FNB Company and
Subsidiaries (an S corporation), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December31,2017
and 2016, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in
stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Manasement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sullicient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia-l
respects, the consolidated financial position of FNB Company and Subsidiaries as of December 3L,2Ql7 and,
2016, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Lufkin, Texas
February 7,2OLg

C
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDI.ARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks
Interest bearing deposits in banks

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Interest-bearing time deposits in banks
Securities available for sale
Securities held-to-maturity
Restricted equity securities
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of
$2,t45,687 in 2ot7 and $2,148 ,346 in 2ot6

Bank premises and equipment, net
Accrued interest receivable
Goodwill, net
Residential real estate acquired in settlement of loans
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities:

Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing depo sits
Interest-bearing deposits

TOTAL DEPOSITS

Federal funds purchased
Accrued interest and other liabilities

TOTAL LTABILITIES

Stockholders' Equity:
Common stock, $1 par value; 5,000,OO0 shares authorized;

130,028 issued, 128,498 outstanding
Surplus
Retained earnings
Treasury stock (1,530 shares at cost)
Accumulated other comprehensive income

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQLITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'

EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
4

2017 2016

$ +497848 $
t3 2t3 573

3 223 847
7 551 03s

17 7tt 421
69 436 000

t56727 876
I 937 t87

57t 520

t2t o2t 48r
8 79t 247
I 494 819
3 031 499

90 000
1 049 903

to 774 882
66 t24 000

146 259 596

570 220

115 886 163
9 049 097
1 381 731
3 031 499

i 031 933
$ ssr 862 9s3 $ SS+ rO9 t2t

$ rso 237 620 $
r92 299 633

tt4 6t3 290
185 862 587

328 537 253 300 475 877

1 152 390
2 440 000
I r23 207

329 689 643 304 039 084

i30 028
2t 40r oo4
30 879 335

(43s e38)
t 904 3921

52 t73 3tO 50 070 037

$ asr 862953 $ SS+ rO9 l2t

130 028
2L 40r OO4
32 860 055

(43s e38)
(1 781 839)
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For the Years Ended December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016

Interest Income:
Interest and fees on loans
Interest on Investment Securities:

Taxable
Exempt from Federal income tax

Interest on deposits in banks
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME

Interest expense on deposits
Interest on Federal funds purchased

NET INTEREST INCOME
Provision for loan losses

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION
FOR LOAN LOSSES

Other Income:
Service charges on deposit accounts
Other service charges and fees
Insurance commissions
Brokerage commissions (net)
Gain/(loss) other
Other income

TOTAL OTHER INCOME

Other Expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy, insurance and equipment expense
ATM processing
Deposit insurance expense
Data processing
Directors fees
Postage and freight
Printing and office supplies
Legal and professional services
Telephone
Marketing
Other operating expenses

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE
FEDERAL INCOME TAXES

Federal income taxes (benefit)

NET INCOME

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these linancial statements.
5

20t7 2016

$ 62247ot $ o23r3T4

2 t79 662
I O89 678
I t67 528

| 905 446
1 141 816

976 797
i0 661 569

442 tO2
1018

10 255 433
441 tt8

| 205
to 2r8 449

240 000
9 813 110

287 500

9 978 449 9 525 610

1 909 860
I 74t 283

639 906
r 755 992

(1 130)
50 858

2 004 564
| 574 a7l

453 074
1 615 549

75 497
6 096 769 5 723 555

6 365 471
| 427 688

737 766
159 995
83t 786
185 819
134 066
2t6 to7
248 7t6
ttt 764
90 665

937 596

5 883
1 339

631
113
841
190
116
184
226
119
116
823

560
360
549
500
430
473
361
732
055
7t3
435
460

tt 447 439 10 586 628

4 627 779 4 662 537

(r9 4941

$ +627779 $ +68203t
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FNB COMPAI\IY AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Years Ended December 31,2077 and 2016

20t7

Net income

Other Comprehensive Income:
Unrealized gains (losses) on available for sale securities

arising during the period
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The accompanyrng notes are an integral part of these financial statements
6

2016

$ 4627 779 $ 468203l:

722553 (3 t62869)
122553 (3 162 869)

$ +750332 $ 1519162
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net

Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Provision for loan losses
Provision for depreciation
Provision (benefit) for deferred taxes
(Gain)/loss on retirement of premises and equipment
FHLB dividends paid in stock
Net amortization (accretion) on investment securities
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable
(Increase) decrease in other assets
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest and other liabilities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of interest-bearing time deposit in banks
Maturities of interest-bearing time deposit in banks
Purchases of available-for-sale securities
Payments received on mortgage backed securities
Proceeds from maturities/calls/ sales of available-for-sale securities
Proceeds from maturities/calls of held-to-maturity securities
Purchases of held-to-maturity securities
Net decrease/(increase) in loans
Purchases of premises and equipment
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment
Purchases of Federal Home Loan Bank Stock
Proceeds from sale ofother real estate

NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Net increase (decrease) in noninterest-bearing deposits
Net (decrease) increase in interest bearing deposits
Purchase of treasury stock
Purchase of Federal funds sold (net)
Distributions paid

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NgT INCREASE (DECREASE)IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OFYEAR

Supplemental Information:
Cash Paid During the Year for:

Interest
Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities:

Distributions declared but not paid
Increase (decrease) in securities available for sale

due to unrealized gains/losses
Transfer ofloans to other real estate

The accompanying notes a-re an integral part of these financial statements.
8

2017 2016

$ + 627 779 $ + 682 031

240 000
643 782

287 500
566 733
(r2 3e7l

(400)
6t6 472
(80 713)
ls 467l,

1 19 353)

1 130
(1 20o)

690 118
(1 1s 088)

(17 97Ol
35 608

6 106 159 5 934 406

(19 164 O00)
15 852 000

(31 680 83e)
5 284 033

15 375 000
20 000

(t e7r 2261
(s 46s 318)

(3e1 Oee)
4 037

(1oo)

(24 239 OOO)

L7 6a4000
(94 lle 5s4)

6 457 298
78 560 000

3 854 818
(706 687]'

e00)(4
50 000

(22 137 sr2l (12 364 O2s)

21, 624 330
6 437 046

(2 44O OOOI
(2 6s3 4841

2 047 475
(1 s90 06s)

(60 77o)
2 440 000
(2 7rs s28l

22 967 492 t2t tt2

6 936 539
to 774 882

(6 308 s07)
17 083 389

$ rz 7rt 421 $ ro 774 882

$

$

$
$

443 t57 $

661 76s $

r22 s53 $
90 000 $

442 755

668 190

(3 t62 869l.
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FNB COMPAI\TY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FNB Company (the "Company"), is a holding company that owns all of the capital stock of The
First National Bank of Livingston (the "Bank"), which in turn owns all the capital stock of Church
Street Financial, ("Church") and Polk County Title Company, Inc., ("Polk") (Note 15). "Bank", "Church"
and "Polk" are referred to as the subsidiaries in these statements. The Bank's main office is located in
Livingston, Texas with branches located in Livingston, Texas, and Onalaska, Texas. The Bank
represents approximately 88% of the total gross revenues on the consolidated statements of income at
December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016.

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company and its subsidiaries conform significantly
to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of American (GAAP) and practices
within the banking industry. The following is a description of the more signihcant of those policies.

Principle s of Consolidation :

The consolidated linancial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries. A1l significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Nature of Operations:

The Company provides a variety of financial services to individuals and corporate customers
through its subsidiaries in Polk County, Texas. The subsidiary Bank's primary deposit products are
demand deposits and certilicates of deposit. Its primary lending products are consumer, commercial,
real estate and single family residential loans. Church provides investment services through its location
in Livingston Texas.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the
determination of the fair value of securities available for sale, the allowance for losses on loans and the
valuation of other real estate owned. In connection with the determination of the allowances for losses
on loans and valuation of other real estate owned, m€ulagement may obtain independent appraisals.

While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans and other real estate
owned, future additions to the allowances may be necessa4/ based on changes in local economic
conditions, other risk characteristics applicable to portfolio segments or borrowers' circumstances. In
addition, regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the
Bank's allowances for losses on loans and foreclosed real estate. Such agencies may require the Bank
to recognize additions to the a116y611665 based on their judgments about information available to them
at the time of their examination.

As a result of the changes inherent in the estimation process, management's estimate of the fair
value of securities available for sale, the allowance for losses on loans and the valuation of other real
estate owned may change in the near term.

Cash and Cash Eouivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents, for purposes of the statement of cash flows, include cash and due
from banks, Federal funds sold and certain investment securities and interest bearing deposits in
banks with original maturities of three months or less.

9
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FNB COMPAI\IY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Investment Securities :

Securities classified as held-to-maturity are those debt securities the Company has both the
intent and ability to hold to maturity regardless of changes in market conditions, liquidity needs or
changes in general economic conditions. These securities are carried at cost, adjusted for
arnortization of premium and accretion of discount, computed using the interest method, over their
contractual lives.

Securities classified as available-for-sale are equity securities with readily determinable fair
values and those debt securities that the Company intends to hold for an indefinite period of time
but not necessarily to maturity. Any decision to sell a security classified as available-for-sale would
be based on various factors, including significant movement in interest rates, changes in the
maturity mix of the Company's assets and liabilities, liquidity needs, regulatory capital
considerations, and other similar factors. These securities are carried at estimated fair value based
on information provided by a third party pricing service with an unrealized gains or losses excluded
from net income and reported in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), which is reported
as a separate component of stockholders' equity.

Dividend and interest income, including amort2ation of premium and accretion of discount
arising at acquisition, from all categories of investment securities are included in interest income in
the consolidated statements of income.

Gains and losses realized on sales of investments securities, determined using the adjusted
cost basis of the specific securities sold, are included in noninterest income in the consolidated
statements of income. Additionally, declines in the estimated fair value of individual investment
securities below their cost that are other-than-temporar5r are reflected as realized losses in the
statements of income. Factor affecting the determination of whether an other-than-temporary
impairment has occurred include, among other things, (i) the length of time and extent to which the
fair value has been less than cost, (ii) the financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer,
(iii) that the Company does not intend to sell these securities, and (iv) it is more likely than not that
the Company will not be required to sell before a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated
recovery in fair value.

Restricted stock consists of stock from the Federal Reserve Bank, Texas Independent Bank
and the Federal Home Loan Bank, which are restricted as to their marketability. Because no ready
market exists for these investments and they have no quoted market value, the Bank's investment in
these stocks are carried at cost. The Bank is required to maintain certain stock balances in the
Federal Reserve Bank and the Federal Home Loan Bank.

l,oans:

Loans are stated at the amount of unpaid principal, reduced by the undisbursed portion of
construction loans (construction loans in process), unearned discount and an allowance for loan
losses. The major loan portfolio segments include Commercial, Real Estate, Installment, Overdrafts,
Consumer and Other. Within these categories, loans are secured most signifrcantly by real estate, but
are also secured by account receivables, inventory, income producing commercial properties, personal
properties such as vehicles and boats and other items of property, plant and equipment. A small
segment of consumer loans are unsecured.

Interest on loans is calculated by using the simple interest method on the daily balances of the
principal amounts outstanding. The recognition of income on a loan is discontinued, and previously
accrued interest is reversed when, in the opinion of management, it is probable that the borrower will
be unable to meet payments as they become due. This generally occurs when the loan becomes 90
days delinquent, but may occur sooner should borrower circumstance dictate.

10
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCI.AL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual or charged off is
reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or
cost-recovery method, until quaii$ring for return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when
all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future pa)rments are
reasonably assured.

Loan origination and commitment fees are recognized as income when received. Direct loan
origination costs are expensed when paid. Financial Accounting Standards Board Codification Section
310.20 Non-Refundable Fees and Costs requires the net effect of loan origination and commitment fees
and certain direct loan origination costs to be deferred and recognized over the life of the related loan
as an adjustment of yield. FNB Company and Subsidiaries do not feel the application of this staldard
would have a material effect on the Bank's financial position or results of operations.

Allowance for Loan Losses:

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through
a provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when
management believes the uncollectability of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if
any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance is based on two basic principles of accounting: (i) FASB ASC 450,
Contingencies, which requires that losses be accrued when they are probable of occurring and
estimable and (ii) FASB ASC 3lO, Receiuables, which requires that losses or impaired loans be
accrued based on the differences between the loan balance and either the value of collateral, if such
loans are considered to be collateral dependent and in the process of collection, or the present value
of future cash flows, or the loan's value as observable in the seconda-ry market. A loan is considered
impaired when, based on current information and events, the Company has concerns about the
ability to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the
contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining
impairment include payment status, collateral value and the probability of collecting scheduled
principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and
payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines that significance
of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all the
circumstances surrounding the loan and borrower, including the length of delay, the reasons for the
delay, the borrower's prior palrment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the
principal and interest owned.

The Company's allowance for loan losses has three basic components: the specific allowance,
the formula allowance and the pooled allowance. Each of these components is determined based
upon estimates that can and do change when the actual events occur. As a result of the
uncertainties inherent in the estimation process, m€rnagement's estimate of loan losses and the
related allowance could change in the near term.

The specific allowance component is used to individually establish an allowance for loans
identified for impairment testing. When impairment is identified, a specific reserve may be
established based on the Company's calculation of the estimated loss embedded in the individual
loan. Impairment testing includes consideration of the borrower's overall financial condition,
resources and payment record, support available form financial guarantors and the fair value of
collateral. These factors are combined to estimate the probability and severity of inherent losses.
Large groups of smaller balance, homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment.
Accordingly, the Company does not separately evaluate individual consumer and residential loans for
impairment.
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FNB COMPAI\ry AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

The formula allowance component is used for estimating the loss on internally risk rated
loans exclusive of those identified as impaired. The loans meeting the Company's internal criteria for
classification, such as special mention, substandard, doubtful and loss, as well as specifically
identified impaired loans, are segregated from performing loans within the portfolio. These internally
classified loans are then grouped by loan t5rpe (commercial, real estate, installment, overdrafts, and
consumer and other). Each loan type is assigned an allowance factor based on management's
estimate of the associated risk, complexity, and size of the individual loans within the particular loan
category. Classified loans are assigned higher allowance factor than non-classified loals due to
management's concerns regarding collectability or management's knowledge of particular elements
surrounding the borrower. Allowance factors increase with the worsening of the internal risk rating.

The pooled formula component is used to estimate the losses inherent in the pools of non-
classified loans. These loans are then also segregated by loan type and allowance factors are
assigned by management based on delinquencies, loss history, trends in volume and terms of loans,
effects of changes in lending policy, the experience and depth of management, national and local
economic trends, concentration of credit, results of the loan review system and the effect of external
factors (i.e. competition and regulatory requirements).

Allowance factors and overall size of the allowance may change from period to period based
on management's assessment of the above-described factors and the relative weights given to each
factor. In addition, various regulatory agencies periodically review the allowance for loan losses.
These agencies may require the Bank to make additions to the allowance for loan losses based on
their judgements of collectability based on information available to them at the time of their
examination.

Management considers loans impaired when, based on current information, it is probable
that the Company will not collect all principal and interest pa5rments according to contractual terms.
Loans are evaluated for impairment in accordance with the Company's portfolio monitoring and
ongoing risk assessment procedures. Management considers the financial condition of the borrower,
cash flow of the borrower, payment status of the loan, and the value of the collateral, if any, securing
the loan. Generally, impaired loans do not include large groups of smaller balance homogenous loans
such as residential real estate and consumer t)pe loans which are evaluated collectively for
impairment and are generally placed on nonaccrual when loan becomes 90 days past due as to
principal or interest. Loans specifically reviewed for impairment are not considered impaired during
periods of "minimal delay" in payment (90 or less) provided eventual collection of all amounts due is
expected. The impairment of a loan is measured based on the present value of expected future cash
flows, discounted at the loan's effective interest rate, or the fair value of the collateral if repayment is
expected to be provided solely by the collateral. In appropriate circumstances, interest income on
impaired loans may be recognized on a cash basis.

The Company's charge-off policy states after all collection efforts have been exhausted and
the loan is deemed to be a loss, it will be charged to the Company's established allowance for loan
losses. Consumer loans subject to the Uniform Retail Credit Classification are charged off as follows:
(a) closed end loans are charged-off no later than 120 days after becoming delinquent, (b) consumer
loans to borrowers who subsequently declare bankruptcy, where the Company is an unsecured
creditor, are charged-off within 60 days of receipt of notification from the bankruptcy court, (c)
fraudulent loans are charged-off within 9O days of discovery and (d) death of borrower will cause a
charge-off to be incurred at such time an actual loss is determined. All other t5rpes of loans are
generally evaluated for loss potential at the 90th day past due threshold, and any loss is recognized
no later than the 120th day past due threshold; each loss is evaluated on its specific facts regarding
the appropriate timing to recognized loss.
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDI,ARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGMFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Other Real Estate Owned and Other Assets Acquired in Settlement of l,oans:

Other real estate owned and other assets acquired in settlement of loans are recorded at the
balance of the loan or at estimated fair value less cost of sale, at the date acquired, plus capital
improvements made thereafter to facilitate sale. Adjustments are made to reflect declines, if any, in fair
values below the recorded amounts at the date of foreclosure and charged to the allowance for losses
on loans. Declines in value subsequent to repossession are charged to a loss provision which is
included in other expenses on the consolidated statements of income. Costs of holding real estate and
other assets acquired in settlement of loans are reflected in income currently. Gains on sales of such
assets are taken into income based on the buyer's initial and continuing investment in the property
and reflected as part of other income on the consolidated statements of income. Other assets acquired
in settlement of loans consist primarily of reacquired personal property.

During 2017, one property (and related improvements) was acquired through foreclosure. The
property had an approximate book value of $112,200. Subsequent to repossession, the valuation of the
property declined to $90,000. The $22,200 reduction in valuation was charged against the allowance
for loan and lease losses reserve. The property was not sold during the year and is carried on the
balance sheet at $SO,OO0.

During the years ended December 31, 2Ol7 and 2016, investments in mortgage loans secured
by residential real estate properties where formal foreclosure procedures were in process totaled $-O-
and $ 1 l2,2OO, respectively.

Insignificant amounts of other assets acquired in settlement of loans were repossessed during
2Ol7 alt'd2Ol6.

Bank Premises and Equipment:

Bank premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The
provision for depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based on estimated useful lives
of the assets. Expenditures for improvements, which extend the life of an asset, are capitalized and
depreciated over asset's remaining useful life. Gains or losses reaJiznd on the disposition of properties
and equipment are reflected in the statements of income. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance
are charged to operating expenses as incurred.

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments:

In the ordinary course of business the Bank has entered into off-balance sheet financial
instruments consisting of commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit and overdraft lines of
credit. Such financial instruments are recorded in the financial statements when they are funded and
at that time become subject to management's evaluation related to collectability.

Self-Insurance:

The Company is primarily self-insured for costs related to employee health care benefits, of
which a portion is paid by the employees. Liabilities associated with these risks are estimated in part
by considering historical claims experience and other assumptions. The Company has purchased stop
loss coverage io limit exposure to claims. At December 3l,2Ol7 arrd 2016, the Company had iecorded
approximately $24,OOO and $-0-, respectively, as an accrual for this liability.

The assumptions underlying the ultimate costs of existing claim losses are unpredictable,
which can affect the liability recorded for such claims. Although the Company's estimates of liabilities
incurred do not anticipate significant changes in historical trends for these variables, any changes
could have a significant impact on future claim costs and current recorded liabilities.
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDI,ARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. CONTINUED

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Income Taxes:

Effective January l,2OIO, the Company elected to become a subchapter S corporation. Under
subchapter S guidelines, all federal taxable income is attributable to the Company shareholders
individually. (See Note 8)

The Company is required to pay tax to the State of Texas based on gross margin (as defined).
This tax has been deemed an income tax by the Financial Accounting Standards Board and
consequently requires accrual in the year the taxable gross margin is earned. For the years presented,
the Consolidated Statements of Income reflects approximately $11,000 and $(4,000) as state income
tax expense (benefit) included in "Other Operating Expenses".

Sales Taxes:

Sales and use taxes and other such pass through state taxes are not recorded in the
consolidated statements of income, but are instead collected and remitted through a liability account.

Goodwill:

The Company does not arnortize goodwill, but instead, evaluates goodwill for impairment at
least annually and adjusts accordingly in accordance with GAAP. The Company does not believe any
impairment of goodwill exists at December 31,2017, based on its evaluation.

Brokeraee Commissions :

Brokerage commissions paid to Bank from its broker-dealer are net of various fees (see Note
17).

Fair Values of Financial Lestruments:

The Company follows the guidance of FASB ASC 825, Financial Instruments, and FASB ASC
82O, Fair Value Measurement. This guidance permits entities to measure many financial instruments
and certain other items at fair value. The objective is to improve financial reporting by providing
entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related
assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. This
guidance clarifies the fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants.
Under this guidance, fair value measurements are not adjusted for transaction costs. This guidance
established a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value. The hierarchy grves the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level
3 measurements).

Comprehensive Income:

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be
included in net income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains
and losses on available-for-sale securities, are reported as a separate component of the equity section
of the balance sheet, such items, along with net income, are components of comprehensive income.
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FNB COMPAI.IY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Uncertain Tax Positions:

FASB Codification Section 740 requires recognition, measurement and disclosure of uncertain
tax positions. The Company currently accounts for uncertain tax positions based on the estimated
likelihood of assessment and has determined that no tax positions (for interest, penalties or otherwise)
require an accrual based on current standards of accounting. The Company is generally no longer
subject to Federal tax examinations for tax years before 2014.

Advertisine:

The Company expenses all advertising costs as incurred. These are included on the
Consolidated Statements of Income as marketing expenses.

Reclassifications:

Certain reclassilications have been made to the prior period's financial statements in order to
conform to the classifications used for the current year. These reclassifications had no effect on the
capital, net income or net cash flows of the Bank.

Subsequent Events:

Management has evaluated subsequent events through February 7 ,2018, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

New Authoritative Accountins Guidance :

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (the FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update
(ASC) 201-Ol, Financial Instruments-Ouerall (Subtopic 825-10): Reagnition and Measurement of
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. The amendments in this Update make targeted
improvements to GAAP as follows: (1) Require equity investments to be measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in net income. (2) Simplify the impairment assessment of equity
investments without readily determinable fair values by requiring a qualitative assessment to identify
impairment. When a qualitative assessment indicates that impairment exists, an entity is required to
measure the investment at fair value. (3) Eliminate the requirement for public business entities to
disclose the method(s) and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value that is required to
be disclosed for financial instruments measured at amortized cost on the balance sheets. (4) Require
public business entities to use the exit price notion when measuring fair value of financial
instruments for disclosure purposes. (5) Clarify that an entity should evaluate the need for a
valuation allowance on a deferred tax asset related to available-for-sale securities in combination
with the entity's other deferred tax assets. This ASU will be effective for financial institutions other
than public business entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods
within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. The Company does not expect the guidance to
have a material impact on its financial statements.

The FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit losses (Topic 326):
Measurement of Credit .Losses on Financial Instruments. Current GAAP requires and incurred loss
methodolory for recognizing credit losses that delays recognition until it is probable a loss has been
incurred. Users of financial statements expressed concern that current GAAP restricts the ability to
record credit losses that are expected, but do not yet meet the probable threshold. The main objective
of the ASU is to provide financial statement users with more decision-useful information about the
expected credit losses on financial instruments and other commitments to extend credit held by
reporting entity at each reporting date. To achieve this objective, the amendments in this Update
replace the incurred loss impairment methodolory in current GAAP with methodologr that reflects
expected credit losses and requires consideration of a broader range of reasonable and supportable
information to inform credit loss estimates. This ASU will be effective for linancial institutions other
than public entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2O2O, and interim periods within
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021. At this time, the Company has not determined the
impact on its financial statements.
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . CONTINUED

The FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flotus (Topic 230): Classification of Certain
Cash Receipts and Cash Pagments, which made the following changes that may affect the Compaay:
(1) Debt Prepayment or Debt Extinguishment Costs: Cash payments for debt prepayment or debt
extinguishment costs should be classified as cash flows from Iinancing activities. (2) Proceeds from
Settlement of Bank-Owned Life Insurance Policies: Cash proceeds received from the settlement of
bank-owned life insurance policies should be classified as cash flows from investing activities. The
cash payments for premiums on bank-owned policies may be classified as cash flows for investing
activities, operating activities, or a combination of investing and operating. The amendments in the
ASU will be effective for entities other than public business entities for Iiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2018, and interim periods within liscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. The
Company does not expect the guidance to have a material impact on its financial statements.

NOTE 2 .II{\IESTMENT SECURITIES

The carrying amount of investment securities as shown in the consolidated balance sheets of
the Company and their fair values at December 3l,2Ol7 and2Ol6, were as follows:

AMORTIZED
COST

GROSS
UNREALIZED

GAIN

GROSS
UNREALIZED

I.oSSES
FAIR

VALUE
Securities Available for Sale:

December 3L,2Ol7:
U.S. agency securities
State and municipal securities
Residential mortgage

backed securities
Other securities

December 3l,2OL6:
U.S. agency securities
State and municipal securities
Residential mortgage

backed securities
Other securities

$720
873

2
371

$$ 92 534 293
44 758 426

(1 s71 73s) $
(365 026)

90 965 278
44 765 673

2t 2L6 595 r39 979 (35e 64e) 20 996 925

$ rsa 509 7r4 $ sr+ szz $ (2 296 41.01 $ rso 727 876

$ 70946741 $
51 54t 223

49 511 $
772 003

(1e64624]| $
(so8 5s1)

69 031 628
51 804 675

25 676 024 222 703 (47s 434l' 25 423 293

$ 148 163 988 $ r. O442L7 $ (2 948 609) $ r+0 2se s96

cosT
AMORTIZED

GROSS
UNREALIZED

GAIN

CROSS
UNREALIZED

LOSSES
FAIR

VALUE
Held-to-Maturity:

December 3l,2OL7:,
State and municipal securities $ r ggz raz $ g zoo $ (30 e64) $ r qos +zs

$ r 937 187 $ S ZOO $ (gO SO+) $ r 909 423

No securities were sold in either period presented.

The carrying amount and fair value of investment securities at December3l, 2017, by
contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities
because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepa5rment
penalties.
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDI.ARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. CONTINUED

NOTE 2 - II{VESTMENT SECUzuTIES - CONTINUED

The scheduled maturities of debt securities at December 31, 2017, were as follows:

AVAII-AEILE-FOR-SALE
SECURITIES

HELD.TO-MATURITY
SECUzuTIES

AMORTIZED
COST

FAIR
VALUE

AMORTIZED
COST

FAIR
VALUE

Due in one year or less
Due from one to five years
Due from five to ten years
Over ten years
Mortgage-backed securities

$ rz 223878 $
53 978 424
64 987 752

1 103 064
2t 2t6 596

t7 27egeo $
53 334 444
64 027 754
t o88 762

20 996 926

$
1 056 950

880 237
1 053 200

856 223

$ 1s8 so9 Tr4 $ rso r2z 876 $ 1 93T t8T $ r goe 423

Investment securities with a fair value of approximately $35,392,000 and $34,799,0OO at
December 3I, 2Ol7 and 2016, respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits and for other
purposes required or permitted by law.

Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2017 and
2016, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a
continuous loss position follows:

LESS THAN 12 MONTHS 12 MONTHS OR GREATER TOTAL

Description of Securities:
December 31, 2017
Anllsble-for-&le

Securltler:
U.S. Agency Securities
State and municipal
Mortgage-backed
securities

Held-to-U.hrrlty
Seorltler:

Deember 31, 2016
Amllable-for-Scle

Securltler:
U.S. Agency Securitjes
State and municipal
Mortgage-backed
scurities

FAIR

$ 28611223 $
$ 13 37s s04 $

$ 57 561 298
$ 23 838 284

VALUE
UNREALIZED

I,oSSES
FAIR

VALUE
UNREALIZED

I,oSSES
FAIR

VALUE
UNREALIZED

LOSSES

(r73796l. $
(98 1s6) $

l.19646241 $
(4ee s7tl $

57 352 962
t3 447 425

$
$

(1 397 e39) $
(266 870) $

85 964 185
26 At6 929

$
$

$

s71 73s)
(36s 026)

{3s9 649)$ 626392s $ ls7 8671 $ r0 s42 434 $ (301 782) $ 16 806 3s7

State and municipal $ | 377 248 $ (30 e64) $ $ $ 1 377 248 $ (30 964)

$
$ | 959 726

$
$

$

- $ 57s6t298 $
(8 e8o) $ 2s 7e8 o1o $

11 964 624l|
(s08 ssl)

$ 18934713 $ (47s434) $ $ 18 934 713 $ (47s 434)

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment on a periodic basis.
Consideration is given to (1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than
cost, (2) the financial condition and near-tern prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of
the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any
anticipated recovery in fair value.

Debt securities with unrealized losses have depreciated 1.75o alrrd 2.8Oo/o from the Company's
amortized cost basis at December 3l,2Ol7 arrd2OL6, respectively. These securities are guaranteed by
the U.S. Govemment, agencies thereof or municipalities. These unrealized losses relate principally to
current interest rates for similar types of securities. In analyzing an issuer's financial condition,
management considers whether the securities are issued by the Federal government or its agencies,
whether downgrades by bond rating agencies have occurred, and the results of reviews of the issuer's
frnancial condition. As management has the ability to hold debt securities until maturity, or for the
foreseeable future if classified as available-for-sale, no declines are deemed to be other-than-temporar5r.
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 3 - LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The Company's goal is to mitigate risk from an unforeseen threat to the loan portfolio as a
result of an economic downturn or other negative influences. Plans that aid in mitigating these
potential risks in managng the loan portfolio include: enforcing loan policies and procedures,
evaluating the borrower's business plan through the loan term, identifying and monitoring primary
and alternative sources of repa5rment, and obtaining adequate collateral to mitigate loss in the event
of liquidation. Specific reseryes are established based on credit and/or collateral risks on an
individual loan basis. A risk rating system is used to estimate potential loss exposure and to provide
a measuring system for setting general and specific reserye allocations.

As of December 31,2017, the real estate loan portfolio constituted 78o/o of the total loan
portfolio. This can be broken down further into the following categories: 54.74oh residential real
estate, 17.57o/o commercial real estate, and 5.09% land development loans, as a percentage of total
loans.

The Company's construction and land development loans are secured by real property where
the loans funds will be used to acquire land and to construct or improve appropriately zoned real
propert5l for the creation of income producing or owner occupied commercial properties. Borrowers
are generally required to put equity into the project at levels determined by the loan committee and
usually are underwritten with a maximum term of 24 months.

Commercial real estate loans are secured by improved real property which is generating
income in the normal course of business. Debt service coverage, assuming stabilized occup€rncy,
must be satisfied to support a pern€rnent loan. The debt service coverage ratio is ordinarily at l.2O to
1.00. These loans are generally underwritten with a term not greater tl:,an 20 years or the remaining
useful life of the property, whichever is lower.

Residential real estate loans are secured by improved real property of the borrower and are
underwritten with terms up to 3O years.

The Company also makes commercial and industrial loans for a variety of purposes, which
include working capital, equipment and account receivable financing. This category represents 10%
of the loan portfolio at December 31, 2Ol7.l,oarts in this category generally carry avariable interest
rate. Commercial loans meet reasonable underwriting standards, including appropriate collateral
and cash flow necessary to support debt service. Personal guarantees are generally required, but may
be limited.

Outstanding Loans:

The tables below present an aged analysis of the Bank's loan portfolio by major loan
classilication as of December 31, 2Ol7 and December 31,2016.

0-59
DAYS
PAST
DUE

$ 311 289 $
2 617 530

60-89
DAYS
PAST
DUE

-g
8 188

GREATER
THAN

90 DAYS
PAST DUE

TOTAL
PAST DUE CURRENT

BALANCE
DECEMBER 31,

2017
Commercial
Real estate
Installment
Overdrafts
Consumer and other 945 726 22 ta2 913 1 008 821

$ 311 28e $
2 625 7t8

11 4s1 6s0 $
96 9tr 904

279 371
t3 456 282

tt 762 9t9
99 537 622

279 371
14 865 103

$ 3 914 545 30$ 370 $ 913 $ 3 945 828 $ t22 499 tA7
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCI.AL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 3 - LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES . CONTINUED

0-59
DAYS
PAST
DUE

60-89
DAYS
PAST
DUE

GREATER
THAN

90 DAYS
PAST DUE

TOTAL
PAST DUE CURRENT

BALANCE
DECEMBER 31

20t6
Commercial
Real estate
Installment
Overdrafts
Consumer and other

$ 428 7i.1 $
4 52t 393

1 095 879

$ 42a7n $
4 728 6a5

L rr4 629

t2 734 528
85 278 547

1 985
262 594

t6 464 301

a6 925

18 750

i2 563
90 007

1

262
17 57A

239
272
985
598
930

$ $
t20 367

$ 6 o4s 983 $__l!!_qz!_ $ t20 367 $ 627202s $ rr+ ,4t999 r20 4t4 024

(2 379 49Ol
(2s)

Construction loans
in process

Unearned discount

Allowance for loan
losses

118 034 509

12 t48 346]'
$ 115 886 163

Nonaccrual Loans:

The table below includes the Bank's nonaccrual loans, including nonperforning trouble debt
restructures and loans past due 90 days, or more at December 31 , 2Ol7 and 20 16.

NONACCRUAL LOANS
ACCRUING PAST DUE

90 DAYS OR MORE
DECEMBER 31 DECEMBER 31

20t7 20t6 2017 20t6
Commercial
Real estate
Consumer

TOTAL

$ s+zsr $
319 669

54 793

$ $
203 s57
81 559

$ 469 2r3 $ zs+ sro $ $

The difference between interest income that would have been recorded under the original terms
of such loans and that which was recorded is not signilicant to these hnancial statements.

Real estate loans consist of residentiai (78% in 2Ol7 ar:d 74o/o in 2016) and commercial (22o/o in
2Ol7 and260/oin2016). All past due real estate loans are in the residential category at December3l,
2Ol7 and2016.

Credit Oualitv Indicators:

The Bank monitors credit quality within its major loan classifications. The results of tl-is
classification process is a factor in the risk characteristics used in establishing the allowance for loan
Iosses. These loans are evaluated and internally classified by the Bank as pass, special mention,
substandard, doubtful or loss.

Pass - An asset classified pass is one that does not possess any weaknesses by management
sufficient to warrant a more adverse classification.

Special Mention - A special mention asset has potential weaknesses that deserve management's
close attention. If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the
repayment prospects for the asset or in the institution's credit position at some future date.
Special mention assets are not adversely classified and do not expose an institution to sufficient
risk to warrant adverse classification.

Stbstandard - A substandard asset is inadequately protected by the curent sound worth and
paylng capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Assets so classified must have
a well-defined weakness, or wealnesses, that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They are
characterized by the distinct possibility that the bank will sustain some loss if the deficiencies
are not corrected,
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 3 - LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES - CONTINUED

Doubtful - An asset classified doubtful has all the weaknesses inherent in one classified
substandard with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation
in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and
improbable.

Loss - Assets classified loss are considered uncollectible and of such little value that their
continuance as bankable assets is not warranted. This classilication does not mean that the
asset has absolutely no recovery or salvage value, but rather that it is not practical or desirable
to defer writing off this basically worthless asset even though partial recovery may be effected in
the future. Amounts classified as loss are generally charged off to the allowance for loan losses
upon such classihcation.

The remaining loans are classified as pass. The following presents the Bank's loan classification
as of December 31, 2Ol7 and 2016 by its major loan classifications.

2017

PASS
SPECIAL
MENTION SUBSTANDARD DOUBTFUL LOSS TOTAL

Commercial
ReaI estate
Installment
Overdrafts
Consumer and other

TOTAL

ll 114 807
93 922 904

$ $ $ $ $561 043
2 229 336

a7 069
85 707

$ 11 762919
96 259 775

279 371
14 865 103

21 428

279 371
14 360 2t5 5 724 481 003 18 161

$ r19 677 297 g 27 5s2 $ 3 271 382 $ rgO SSZ $ $ 123 167 168

2016

PASS
SPECIAL
MENTION SUBSTANDARD DOUBTFUL LOSS TOTAL

Commercial
Real estate
Installment
Overdrafts
Consumer and other

TOTAL

to 626 709
87 442 557

1 960
262 594

17 032 r99

$ 27179 $ 1 909 3sl $
r85 225

$ $ $ 12 s63 239
a7 627 782

I 960
262 598

17 57893035 862 496 018 14 851
$ lls 366 O23 $ 63 O41 $ 2 590 594 $ r+ SSr $ $ 118 034 s09

Allowance for Credit [oss:

The detail below reflects the changes in the allowance for loan losses by the Bank's major loan
classifications for the years ended December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016:

COM-
MERCIAL

REAL
ESTATE

OVER. CONSUMER
AND OTHER

UN-
ALI,OCATEDDRAFTS TOTAL

146095 $ 1073349 $ 101686 $ 324920 $ 42s870 $ 207t920
(36 607) (133 4s6) (e1 121)

38 357 11 753

(261184)

50 110

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN
IOSSES DECEMBER 3T, 2015 $

Loals charged off
Recoveries of loans

previously charged off
NET CHARGE OFFS

Provision for loan and lease losses
ALI,OWANCE FOR LOAN

I,OSSES DECEMBER 3I, 2016
loans charged off
Recoveries of loans

previously charged off
NET CHARGE OFFS

Provision for loan and lease losses
ALLOWANCE FOR I,OAN

LOSSES DECEMBER 31,2017 $

(36 607l
65 426 to 244

1 083 633
(22 2ool

(r8 82s) (22 2OOl

67 029 204 4a4

(9s o99)
90 751

97 338
(t4s 432),

41 628
(103 804)
r32 239

(79 368)
129 3t6

(2rr o74l
B 6771 247 500

175 3t4
(18 82s)

374 a68
(111 4s4)

73 624
(97 830)
85 425

417 t93 2 t48 346

{297 911)

55 252
(242 6s9)

(249 t77l 240 000

223 sla $ 1 265 917 $ r2s773 $ 362 463 $ 168 016 $ 2 r4s 687
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 3 . LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES - CONTINUED

The table below represents the allowance and the carrying value of outstanding loans and
leases by portfolio segment at December 3l,2OI7 and 2016:

COM-

MERCIAL
REAL

ESTATE

INSTALL.

MENT

CONSUMER

AND OTHER

OVER-

DRAFTSDECEMBER 37,2017 TOTAL

Impaired Loans and Trouble

Debt Restructurings:

Allowance for loans and

lease losses

Unpaid principal balance

Allowance as a percentage

of unpaid principal balance

Collectively EvaLuated for
lmpairment:

Allowance for loans and

lease losses

Unpaid principal balance
Allowance as a percentage

of unpaid principal balance

Total:

Allowance for loans and

lease losses

Unpaid principal balmce
Allowance as a p€rcentage

of unpaid principal balance

39.49o/"

$ 1s8 799 $

$ 11 s99 024 $

1.37o/o

$ 223 s18 $
$ 11762919 $

l.9Oo/o

coM-
MERCIAL

$

$

$
$

$

$
$

$

64 779

163 895
91 548

714 272

12.820/o

1 r74 369
95 545 503

1.23o/o

| 265 917
96 259 775

l.32Yo

REAL

o/o

o/o

o/o

o/o

l s60

o/"

1 960

o/o

to5 297
228 422

46,100/o

257 166

14 636 681

l.?60/o

2,440/0

| 716 tO7

t22 060 579

26t 564
I 106 589

23.640/o

1.41o/o

t,610/o

TOTAL

$
$

$

$

$
$

362 463
14 865 103

| 977 671
123 167 168

$

$

$

$

DECEMBER 31.2016
INSTALL

MENT

CONSUMER

AND OTHER

$

$

$

$

28r 364
t7 324 937

o/o

$ 125 773 $
$ 279 37r $

45.O20/"

$ 12s 773 $

$ 279 37r $

45.O2o/"

OVER-

DRAFTS

$ 97338 $

$ 262 598 $

37.O70/"

$

$

$
$

$
$

$

$

$

$

$

$

ESTATE

Impaired l,oans and Trouble

Debt Restructurings:

flowance for loans and
lease losss

Unpaid principal balance

Allowance as a percentage

of unpaid principal balance

Collectively Evaluated for
Impaiment:

Allowance for loans and
lease los*s

Unpaid principal balance

Allowance as a percentage

of unpaid principal balance

Total:
Allowance for loans ald

lease losms
Unpaid principal balance

Allowance as a percentage

of unpaid principa.l balance

19_280/"

$ ts2624 $

$ r244s549 $

$

$

22 690
r 17 690

52 995
449 043

2O.860/o

l 030 638
a7 373 7A9

93 504
253 993

169 189

420 7'24

$

$

36.81o/o

374 868
17 578 930

2,130/"

I 561 964

I 17 408 833

27.O4o/o

t.330/o

L470/o

o/"

1.23o/"

$ 17s 314

$ 12 s63 239

t.400/0

1.180/o

$ 1083633 $

$ 87 627 ?82 $

1.24o/o

2t

1.620/o 37.O7o/o

$ 97 338

$ 262 s98
$
$

1 731 153

I 18 034 509
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 3 - LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES - CONTINUED

Impaired l.oans and Trouble Debt Restructurings:

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable
that the Bank will be unable to collect all amounts due from the borrower in accordance with the
contractual terms of the loan. Information on impaired loans for the years ended December 3I, 2Ol7
and 2016 are as follows:

DECEMBER 3I,2OI7
UNPAID

PRINCIPAL
BALANCE

CARRYING
VALUE

RELATED
ALLOWANCE

AVERAGE
CARRYING
AMOUNT

With no Related Allowance Recorded:
Commercial
ReaI estate
Consumer and other

TOTAL
With an Allowance Recorded:

Commercial
Real estate
Consumer and other

TOTAL
Total:

Commercial
Real estate
Consumer and other

TOTAL

With no Related Allowance Recorded:
Commercial
Real estate
Consumer and other

TOTAL
With an Allowance Recorded:

Commercial
Real estate
Consumer and other

TOTAL
Total:

Commercial
Real estate
Consumer and other

TOTAL

$

$

$ $ $
170 158
27 A6l

170 158
27 86r

130 658
32 049

198 019 198 019 162 707

163 895
544 113
200 561

99 176
452 565

95 264

64 719
91 548

105 297

97 088
378 728
109 758

908 569 647 005 26t 564 585 574

163 895
7t4 27t
228 422

99 t76
622 723
t23 125

64 7t9
91 548

to5 297

97 088
509 386
t4t 807

$ 1 106 s88 $ 84s 024 $ 26t s64 $ 748281

DECEMBER 3r,2016
UNPAID

PRINCIPAL
BALANCE

91 157
36 237

CARRYING
VALUE

REI.,ATED
ALLOWANCE

AVERAGE
CARRYING
AMOUNT

$ $ $
91 157
36 237

49 682
40 566

127 394 127 394

9s 000
304 890
t24 25t

90 244

tt7 690
357 885
2r7 75s
693 330 524 l4t 169 189

47 500
r52 445
69 780

269 725

22 690
52 995
93 s04

117 690
449 042
253 992

95 000
396 047
160 488

22 690
52 995
93 504

47 500
202 127
1 10 346

$ 820724 $ 6s1 s3s $ 169 189 $ 3s9 973

Income recognized during the periods presented related to impaired loans is not considered
significant for separate disclosure.

The Bank is not committed to lend additional funds to debtors whose loans have been modified.

The aggregate amount of loans owed to the Bank by employees, directors and executive oflicers
of the Bank and its subsidiaries and directors, executive officers and principal holders of the Company
and their related entities totaled approximately $4,137,000 and $4,154,000 at December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively. Activity during the years presented for these loans are approximately as follows:

2017 20t6
Balance, beginning of year
Advances
Repa5rments
Additions - Hires with existing loans
Reductions - No longer employed

BALANCE END OF YEAR
(91 000)

$ + 137 ooo $ + 154 ooo

$ + 1s4 ooo
1 857 000

(2 11e 0OO)
279 000
(34 OOO)

$ s 760 ooo
1 660 000

(1 17s 000)
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FNB COMPAI\IY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. CONTINUED

NOTE 4 - BANK PREMISES AND EOUIPMENT

Major classifications of these assets as of December 31 are summarized as follows:

20t7 20t6

USEFUL
LIVES

IN YEARS
Land
Building and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Computer software
Automobiles
Equipment in process

TOTAL COST
Accumulated depreciation

NET BOOK VALUE

$ zese63s $
9 558 495
2 85r 7t9

455 t62
1 15 936
70 434

2 959 635
9 478 r37
3 316 143

365 9t4
105 906
95 927

5-40
3-10
3-5
3-4

16 0i1 381
(7 22O t34l

16 32r 662
(7 272 56sl

$ a 79r 247 $ q 049 097

Depreciation expense amounted to $643,782 and $566,733 ln 2Ol7 and 2016, respectively and
is included as a component of occupancy and equipment expense on the consolidated statements of
income.

NOTE 5 - DEPOSITS

The aggregate amount of time deposits with a minimum denomination of $100,000, was
approximately $17,783,000 and $18,847,00O at December3l, 2Ol7 and 2016. Tota-l time deposits in
excess of the Federal insurance amount of $250,00O totaled approximately $3,636,000 and $4,245,000
at December 3l , 2Ol7 arrd 2016, respectively.

Time deposits maturing in years ending December 31, are as follows:

20r8
20t9
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter

TOTAL

$ ss 890 49s
3 739 502
1 912 586

774 940
1 980 890

$ ++ 2984t3

Deposits due to directors, officers, signifrcant shareholders and their afliliates approximated
$9,705,000 and $9,929,000 at December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016, respectively.

Overdraft demand deposits of $279,371 and $ZOZ,SSA respectively have been classified as
loans in the accompanying financial statements.

NOTE 6 - OF CREDIT

The Bank has two lines of credit to purchase Federal funds in the amount of $11,000,000
unsecured and $9,000,000 secured by certain investment securities that expires upon cancellation.
The Bank had $-0- arrd $2,440,000 of Federal funds purchased drawn at December 31, 2Ol7 and
2016, respectively.
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 7 - RE"TIREMENT PLANS

The Company sponsors a aolft) Retirement Plan ("PIan") for the Company and its subsidiaries,
which is in effect for substantially all full-time employees (if they elect to be covered). The Company, at
its discretion, may match a portion of each employee's contribution. The Company, at its discretion,
may make an additional contribution as of each December 31. Contributions to the plan amounted to
approximately $398,000 and $SZZ,O00 lor 2Ol7 and 2016, respectively and are included in salaries
and employee benefits on the consolidated statements of income.

NOTE 8 - FEDERAL INCOME TAXES

Effective January l,2OIO, the Company elected to become a subchapter S corporation. Under
subchapter S guidelines, all federal taxable income is attributable to the Company shareholders
individually. The Company has passed the five year built-in gains tax period.

NOTE 9 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal
course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers and to reduce its own exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit. Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest
rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets. The contract or
notional amounts of those instruments reflect the edent of involvement the Company has in particular
classes of financial instruments.

The Company's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperfonnance by the other party to the
financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by
the contractual notional amount of those instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in
making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

The Company had financial instruments whose contract or notional amounts represent credit
risk of approximately the following:

DECEMBER 31
20t7 20t6

Commitments to extend credit
Standby letters of credit
Overdraft lines of credit (unfunded)
Unfunded portion of construction loans

$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$

2 350 000
573 000

5777 000
3 278 000

4 830 000
1 037 000
5 939 000
2 379 000
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FNB COMPAI.IY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 9 - FINANCI,AL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no
violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration
dates or other termination clauses, are generally variable rate in nature and may require payment of a
fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total
commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company evaluates
each customer's creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if it is
deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit, is based on management's credit
evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies, but may include real estate; accounts receivable;
inventory; property, plant, and equipment; and income-producing commercia,l properties. Of the
commitments to extend credit, approximately $151,000 and $+9O,OOO were to related part5z borrowers
at December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016, respectively.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to support public
and private borrowing arrErngements. Standby letters of credit generally have fixed expiration dates and
may require pa5rment of a fee. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same
as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. Collateral held for the standby letters of credit
primarily consists of certificates of deposit.

Overdraft lines of credit represent amounts available for deposit customers to overdraft deposit
accounts. Outstanding overdrafts as of December 31, 2OI7 and 2016 were approximately $279,000
and $263,000, respectively. Of these outstanding overdrafts, approximately $188,000 and $184,000
were amounts drawn on overdraft lines of credit as of December 31, 2Ol7 and2016.

FASB ASC 82O, Fair Value Measurement, clarffies that fair value is an exit price, representing
the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants. Under this guidance, fair value measurement are not
adjusted for transaction costs. This guidance establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gves the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Irevel 1 measurements)
and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair
value hierarchy under this guidance are described below:

a

a

Level 1 - Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets.
Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions
involving identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuations for assets or liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker
markets. Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or
comparable asset or liabilities which use observable inputs other than Level 1 prices,
such as quoted prices from similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in active markets
that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by
observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and
that are significant to the fair vaiue of the assets or liabilities.
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FNB COMPAI\TY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 9 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED

Fair values of assets and liabilities are presented on the consolidated balances sheets
measured on a recurring basis at December 3l , 2Ol7 and 20 16 are as follows:

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AT REPORTING DATE USING
QUOTED
PzuCES

IN ACTIVE
MARKETS FOR

IDEI{TICAL
ASSETS/

LIABILITIES
(LEVEL 1)

Deceaber 3l,2OL7
Available -for-Sale Securities:

U. S. agency securities
State and municipal securities
Residential mortgage backed

securities

FAIR
VALUE

SIGMFICANT
OTHER

OBSERVAE}LE
INPUTS

(LEVEL2I

SIGNIFICANT
UNOBSERVABLE

INPUTS
(LEVEL 3)

$$$

$$$$

$$$

$

90965278 $
44 765 673

20 996 925

90 965 278
44 765 673

20 996 925
$ 1s6 727 876 $ $ rso 727 876 $

December gL,2OL6
Available -for-Sale Securities:

U. S. agency securities
State and municipal securities
Residential mortgage backed

securities

Other Real Estate Owned:
Residential real estate

TOTAL OTHER REAL
ESTATE OWNED

69 031 628
51 804 675

25 423 293

69 031 628
51 804 675

25 423 293
$ r+o 259 596 $ $ r+o 259 596 $

Fair value of available for sale securities is based on discounted cash flow analysis based on
observable inputs reflective of l,evel 2 inputs. These inputs include market quotes for similar
instruments, current market yields and offering sheets.

The following tables set forth the Company's financial assets and liabilities that were
accounted for or disclosed at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016:

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS USING
QUOTED
PRICES

IN ACTIVE
MARKETS FOR

IDENTICAL
ASSETS

(LEVEL 1)

Impaired [,oans:
Commercial
Real estate
Consumer

TOTAL IMPAIRED LOANS

DECEMBER 31,
20t7

SIGNIFICANT
OTHER

OBSERVABLE
INPUTS

(LEVEL 2)

SIGNIFICANT
UNOBSERVABLE

INPUTS
(LEVEL 3)

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

163 895
7t4 272
22a 422

163 895
7t4 272
224 422

1 106 s89 $ $ r 106 s89

90 000 s 90 000

90 000 $ 90 000

3 031 499 $
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FNB COMPAI\TY AND SUBSIDTARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 9 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS USING

DECEMBER 31,
2016

QUOTED
PzuCES

IN ACTIVE
MARKETS FOR

IDENTICAL
ASSETS

(LEVEL 1)

SIGNIFICANT
OTHER

OBSERVABLE
INPUTS

ILEVEL2I

SIGNIFICANT
UNOBSERVABLE

INPUTS
(LEVEL 3)

Impaired l,oans:
Commercial
Real estate
Consumer

TOTAL IMPAIRED LOANS

$

$ 820726 $

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

rL7 690 $
449 043
253 993

rr7 690
449 043
253 993
820 726

Other Real Estate Owned:
Residential real estate

TOTAL OTHER REAL
ESTATE OWNED

Goodwill 3 031 499 3 031 499

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring
basis; that is, the instruments are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to
fair value adjustments in certain circumstances. Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value on nonrecurring basis include the following:

Goodwill

Fair market value of goodwill is determined on a nonrecurring basis in order to determine if
any impairment exists. In order to estimate the fair value of goodwill the Company uses
inputs such as values of similar entities.

Impaired Loans

Certain impaired loans are reported at fair value of underlying collateral if repayment is
expected solely from the collateral. The impaired loarts are reported at fair value through a
specific valuation allowance allocation of the allowance for possible loan losses. Collateral
values are estimated using l,evel 2 inputs based on observable market data or kvel 3 inputs
based on customized discounting criteria.

Other Real Estate Owned

OREO acquired by foreclosure is recorded at the fair value of the property, less any selling
costs, as applicable, at the time of foreclosure. If necessarlr, carrying amounts are reduced to
reflect this value through charges to the allowance for possible credit losses upon foreclosure.
Subsequent to foreclosure, real estate is carried at the lower of its new cost basis or fair
value, less estimated costs to sell. OREO is fair valued under l,evel 3 at the lower of cost or
fair value based on property appraisals less estimated costs, which include both observable
and unobservable inputs, at the time of transfer and as appropriate thereafter.
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FNB COMPAI.IY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 9 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of FASB ASC 825, Financial Instruments, the
estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments are as follows:

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AT REPORTING DATE USING

DECEMBER 3I,2OI7

QUOTED PRICES
IN ACTWE

MARKETS FOR
IDENTICAI
ASSETS/

LTABILITIES
(LEVEL 1)

CARRYING
AMOUNT

FAIR
VALUE

SIGNIFICANT
OTHER

OBSERVABLE
INPUTS

(LEVEL 2)

SIGNIFICANT
UNOBSERVABLE

INPUTS
(LEVEL 3I

Cash and due from banks
lnterest bearing time deposits
in banks

Securities available-for-sale
Securities held- to-maturity
Restricted equity securities
Loans receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Financial Liabilities:

Deposit Uabilities
Accrued interest payable

DECEMBER3I,20I6
Cash and due frcm banks
Interest bearing time deposits

in banks
Securitie s avai.lable-for-sale
Securitie s held-to- maturity
Restricted equity securities
lnms receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Financial Liabilities:

Deposit l.iabilities
Accrued interest payable
Federal funds purchased

$ rz 7rt 42r $ 17 7rL 42t $ t7 7tt 42t $ $

$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$

$ 69 436 000
$ 156 727 876
$ 1 937 ta7
$ s71 s2o
$ 121 021 481
$ 1 494 819

68 834 406
756 727 a76

| 909 422
N/A

720 367 730
1 494 Atg

$ 323 8s3 1s8 $
$ 16640 $

68 834 406
156 727 876

| 909 422

$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$

$
$

328 537 253
16 640

t20 367 730
| 494 819

323 8s3 ls8
t6 640

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AT REPORTING DATE USING
QUOTED PRICES

IN ACTIVE
MARKETS FOR

IDENTICAL
ASSETS/

LIABILITIES
(LEVEL 1)

CARRYING
AMOUNT

FAIR
VALUE

SICNIFICANT
OTHER

OBSERVABLE
INPUTS

(LEVEL 2)

SIGNIFICANT
UNOBSERVABLE

INPUTS
(LEVEL 3)

1t6 028 334

300 561 184

$ 10 774 882 $ 10 774 a&z $ 10 774 a82 $

66 124 000
146 25S 5S6

65 824 624
t46 259 s96

$

$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$

$
$
$
s
$
$

$
$
$

65 824 624
146 2s9 s96

$ 300 47s a77 $
$ 16677 $
$ 2440000 $

N/A
I 16 028 334

I 381 731

300 561 184
t6 677

2 440 000

570 220
l l5 886 163

I 381 731

t6 677
2 440 000

The following methodologies and assumptions were used by the Compaly in estimating its
fair value disclosures for linancial instruments:

Cash and Cash Equirralents

The carrying amounts report in the consolidated balance sheets for cash and cash
equivalents approximate those assets' fair values.

Interest Bearing Time Deposits in Banks

Fair values of interest bearing deposits in banks are estimated using discounted cash flow
analysis, based on rates currently being offered on certificates with terms approximating the
remaining term of the certificates in the portfolio.

Investment Securities and Restricted Equity Securlties

Fair values for investment securities are based on quoted market prices, where available. If
quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on discounted cash flow analysis
based on observable inputs, except for restricted securities where fair value equals par value
based on redemption va-lue.

28

F.-R.l$,1(|tF-v,#["0,,PHl,



FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDI.ARIES
NOTES TO FINANCI-AL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 9 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED

Loans, Net

For both fixed and variable rate loans in 2Ol7 and 2016, fair va-lues are estimated using
discounted cash flow analysis and current interest rates charged for the types of loans in the
portfolio.

Accrued Interest Receirrable

The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable approximates fair value.

Deposits

The fair va-lues of transactional deposits accounts (interest and noninterest checking, savings
and money market accounts) are considered to be their carrying amounts. Fair values for
fixed rate certificates of deposits are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that
applies interest rates currently being offered on certificates to a schedule of the aggregate
expected monthly maturities on time deposits.

Accrued Interest Payable

The carrying amount of accrued interest payable approximates fair value

Federal Fund Purchased

Fair value of overnight borrowings approximate those liabilities' carrying amount.

Commitments to Extend Credit

There is not material difference between the notional amount and the estimated fair value of
off-balance-sheet unfunded loan commitments which are generally priced at market at the
time of funding. Letters of credit have an estimated fair value based on fees currently charged
for similar agreements. Fees related to the unexpired term of the letters of credit are not
significant. The Company has not incurred any losses on its commitments to extend credit or
standby letters of credit during the years presented.

F IT

The Company periodically carries certain assets with other financial institutions which are
subject to credit risk by tl:re amount such assets exceed Federal deposit insurance limits. From time to
time, the Bank is also due amounts in excess of FDIC insurance limits for checks and transit items.
The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) provides deposit insurance coverage for amounts up
to $250,000 for substantially all depository accounts. Management monitors the financial stability of
correspondent banks and considers amounts advanced in excess of FDIC insurance limits to present
no significant additional risk to the Bank.

29

AXLEY&ROIIE."f&il



FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 1 1 . REGULATORY MATTERS

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capita-l requirements administered by the Federal
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory - and
possibly additional discretionary - actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct,
material effect on the financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory
framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve
quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under
regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative
judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank
to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of Total, Common and Tier I
capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defrned), and of Tier I capital (as
defined) to average assets (as defined). Management believes, as of December3l, 2Ol7,that the Bank
meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.

As of December 31, 2Ol7 al:d 2016, the most recent notifrcation from the Oflice of the
Comptroller of Currency categorized the Bank as well-capitaJJzod under the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well-capitalized, minimum total risk-based, Tier I risk
based common equity Tier I risk based and Tier I leverage ratios as set forth in the table must be
maintained. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have
changed the Bank's categories.

Actual capital amounts and ratios are presented in the table for the Bank (in thousands). Bank
only amounts and percentages are presented as they do not differ materially from bank holding
company amounts and percentages.

ACTUAL
FOR CAPITAL

ADEQUACY PURPOSES

TO BE WELL CAPITALIZED
UNDER PROMPT CORRECTIVE

ACTION PROVISIONS
AMOUNT RATIO AMOUNT RATIO AMOUNT RATIO

As of December 3l,2Ol7:
Total Risk Based Capital

(to Risk Weighted Assets) $
Tier I Capital (to Risk

Weighted Assets) $
Common Equity Tier I

Capital Ratio (to Risk
Weighted Assets) $

Tier I kverage Capita-l (to
Average Assets) $

52 495

50 904

50 904

50 904

47.42o/o $

40.160/o $

40,160/o $

l3.29Yo $

> tt 724

>9189

>7 288

> 15 316

>9.25OYo $

>7.25OYo $

> 5.75Oo/o $

> 4.OOOo/o $

>_ 72 675

> 10 140

>8 239

> 19 145

> 10.0%

> 8.OYo

> 6.5Vo

> 5.0%

As ofDecember 31, 2016:
Tota-l Risk Based Capital

(to Risk Weighted Assets) $ 50 470 40.9lyo $ > tO O+O >- 8.6250/o $ > 12 336 > 10.0%
Tier I Capital (to Risk
weightedAssets) $ 48921 39.660A $ > atTg 26.6250/o $ > ga6g 2 8.Oo/o

Common Equity Tier I
Capital Ratio (to Risk
weightedAssets) $ 48921 39.660/o $ > OSZZ 25.t25o/o $ > 8018 2 6.50/o

Tier I Leverage Capital (to
AverageAssets) $ 49921 13.670/o $ >r+S15 24.OOOo/o $ >tZgg+ > 5.0%

The above 2017 risk-weighted capital ratios for capital adequacy purposes include a .6250/o
capital conservation buffer. The capital conservation buffer will be phased in over four years to 2.5O%o.
Financial institutions with a buffer greater than .6250/o (2ol7l are not subject to limits on capital
distributions or discretionary bonus payments beyond those currently included in regulations. As
reflected above, the Bank's capital was suflicient to exceed its minimum capital requirements including
the required capital conservation buffer.
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 11 - REGULATORY MATTERS - CONTINUED

Although Federal Reserve regulations regarding specific capital requirements do not generally
apply to Bank Holding Companies with consolidated assets of less than $500 million, the Federal
Reserve may apply capital guidelines to the Company on a consolidated basis, regardless of asset size,
if such action is warranted for supervisory purposes.

NS

The Bank is subject to certain restrictions on the amount of distributions that it may pay
without prior regulatory approval. The Bank normally restricts distributions to a lesser amount. At
December 31 ,2017, retained earnings of approximately $5,900,000, were available to the Bank for
the payment of distributions without prior regulatory approval. This amount available is reduced
subsequent to December 3l,2Ol7 to approximately $3,900,000 since it is based on the current year
to date earnings retained plus the previous two years retained income. In addition, distributions may
not be paid by the Bank without regulatory approval if capital requirements will not be met
subsequent to the dividend.

As a subchapter S corporation, the Company may also be limited as to distributions based on
previous retained subchapter S earnings or bank capital requirements as noted above.

NOTE 13 - RESTRICTION ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

The Bank is required to maintain reserve funds in cash or on deposit with the Federal
Reserve Bank. The required reserve at December 31,2017, was approximately $4,467,000.

NOTE 14 - DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Effective December 31, 2010, the physical assets and related title and abstract business of
Polk County Title Company, Inc. were sold. Polk County Title Company, Inc. will remain in existence
for a period of years in accordance with certain legal requirements and may generate or expend
insignificant amounts of cash flow during the remaining years of its existence.

NOTE 15 - COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The following table presents the components of other comprehensive income (loss) for the years
ended December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016.

YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 3L,2OI7 DECEMBER 31 20t6

(DOLI"ARS INTHOUSANDS)
Changes in net unrealized gains

on securities available for sale
Reclassifi cation adjustment for

gains realized
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME (r,OSS)

BEFORE TAX
TAX EFFECT

$ 122 5s3 $

NET OF
TAX

BEFORE
TAX

TAX
EFFECT

NET OF
TAX

$ 122 ss3 $ (3 162 869) $

$ 122 sss $ $ 122 ss3 $ (3 162 869)

$ (3 162 86e)

$ $
(3 162 869)
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIAzuES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 15 - COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - CONTINUED

The following table presents the changes in each component of accumulated other
comprehensive income, net of tax, for the years ended December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016.

(DOLIARS IN THOUSANDS)

SECURITIES
AVAII.,{BLE
FOR SALE

ACCUMUI,ATED
OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (I.oSS)

Balance at Jaluary L, 2OL6

Other comprehensive income before reclassifications

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income

Balance at December 3l,2OL6

Other comprehensive income before reclassifications

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income

Balance at December 3L,2Ol7

Gross brokerage commissions
Expenses

NET BROKERAGE COMMISSIONS

32

$ 1 61s 549 trss992

$ L 258 477 $

(3 162 86e)

| 254 477

(3 L6286el

(t 9o4 3921

t22 553

(t eo4 392l,

t22 553

$ (1781 83e) $ (1 781 839)

NOTE 16 - BROKERAGE COMMISSION

Net brokerage commission consists of the following for the years ended December 31, 2Ol7 and
2076:

20t6 20L7
$ r ess oor

(280 0s2)
2 076 409

(320 4t7l
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Board of Directors
FNB Company and Subsidiaries
Livingston, Texas

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of FNB Company and Subsidiaries as of
and for the years ended December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016, and our report thereon dated February 7, 2Ol8
which expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements appears on page 3. Our audit
was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a
whole. The consolidating information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated hnancial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

ACCO

Lufkin, Texas
February 7,2018

m33 www. axleyrode. c0m



CONSOLIDATING SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FNB COMPAI\TY AND SUBSIDI.ARIES
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

December 3l,2Ol7

FNB
COMPAI.IY

THE FIRST
NATIONAL BANK
OF LIVINGSTON

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks
Interest bearing deposits in banks
Securities available-for- sale
Securities held-to-maturity
Restricted equity securities
Investment in subsidiaries
Loans, less allowance for loan losses
Bank premises and equipment, net
Accrued interest receivable
Goodwill, net
Residential real estate acquired in settlement of loans
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits:

Nonintere st-bearing deposits
Interest-bearing deposits

TOTAL DEPOSITS

Accrued interest and other liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Stockholders' Equity:
Common stock
Surplus
Retained earnings
Treasury stock
Accumulated other comprehensive income

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'

EQUITY

See independent auditors' report on supplementary information.
35

$ 19 162 $ t7 7tt 42r
69 436 000

156 727 876
t937 I87

57t 520
52 t54 20r

66t 7t2

t2t o2t 48t
8 79t 247
I 494 8r9
3 031 499

90 000
1 049 956

$ sz 83s 075 $ ser 863 006

$ $ t36 256 782
r92 299 633

661 765

328 556 415

1 152 390
661 765 329 708 805

130 028
2t 401 oo4
32 860 055

(43s e38)
(1 781 839)

479 000
t2 6t2 340
40 844 700

(1 781 839)
52 173 310 52 r54 20t

$ sz 83s o7s $ sar 863 006
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ELIMINATING
ENTRIES

CONSOLIDATED
TOTALS

$ (le 162)

(52154 20tl

(66L 7651

(re 162)

(66176s1
(680 9271

(47e OOO)

(r2 6t2 34O)
(4O 844 TOO\

$ t7 7tt 42r
69 436 000

t56 727 876
t937 t87

57t 520

$ tsz 83s 128) $ sst 862 9s3

$ 1te tozl $ tso 237 620
192299 633

t21 02t 481
8 79t 247
I 494 8t9
3 031 499

90 000
1 049 903

328 537 253

1 152 390
329 689 643

130 028
2L 40t OO4
32 860 055

(43s e38)
(1 781 839)

36

1 781 839
(52 t54 20Ll 52 t73 3tO

$ (s2 83s 128) $ sst 862 9s3
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FNB COMPAT{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

December 3l ,2016

FNB
COMPAI{Y

THE FIRST
NATIONAL BANK
OF LIVINGSTON

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks
Interest bearing deposits in banks
Securities available for sale
Restricted equity securities
Investment in subsidiaries
Loans, less allowance for loan losses
Bank premises and equipment, net
Accrued interest receivable
Goodwill, net
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits:

Noninterest-bearing deposits
Leterest-bearing deposits

TOTAL DEPOSITS

Federal funds purchased
Accrued interest and other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Stockholders' Equit5r:
Common stock
Surplus
Retained earnings
Treasury stock
Accumulated other comprehensive income

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'

EQUITY

See independent auditors' report on supplementary information.
37

$ so 738227 $ SS+ 109 17s

$ $ tt4 630 071
185 862 587
300 492 658

668 190
2 440 000
I t23 207

668 190 304 055 865

$ 16781 $

50 053 310

668 136

to 774 882
66 r24 000

146 259 596
570 220

115 886 163
9 049 097
1 381 731
3 031 500
1 031 986

130 028
2t 40t oo4
30 879 335

(43s 938)
(t 9o4 3e2l

479 000
t2 6t2 340
38 866 362

(r 9o4 392l.
50 070 037 50 053 310

$ so 738227 $ 3s4 109 175
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ELIMINATING
ENTRIES

CONSOLIDATED
TOTALS

$ (16 781) $ to 774882
66 t24000

146 259 596
570 220

(s0 os3 310)

(668 190)

115 886 163
9 049 097
1 381 731
3 031 500
1 031 932

$ tso 738 28tl $ gs+ ro9 12r

$ 1to zst; $ rr46t329O
185 862 587

(16 781) 300 475 877

(668 190)
2 440 000
t 123 207

(684 97rl 304 039 084

(47e 000)
(r2 6t2 34O)
(38 866 362)

130 028
21 401 OO4
30 879 335

(43s e38)
(t9o4 39211 904 392

(so os3 310) 50 070 037

$ (so 738 281) $ s54 tog 12t
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME

For the Year Ended December 3l,2Ol7

FNB
COMPAI{Y

THE FIRST
NATIONAL BANK
OF LIVINGSTON

Interest Income:
Interest and fees on loans
Interest on Investment Securities:

Taxable
Exempt from Federal income tax

Interest on deposits in banks
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME

Interest expense on deposits
Interest on Federal funds purchased

NET INTEREST INCOME
Provision for loan losses

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION
FOR LOAN I..OSSES

Other Income:
Service charges on deposit accounts
Other service charges and fees
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries
Insurance commissions
Brokerage commissions (net)
Gain/(loss) other
Other income

TOTAL OTHER INCOME

Other Expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy, insurance and equipment expense
ATM processing
Deposit insurance ereense
Data processing
Directors fees
Postage and freight
Printing and offrce supplies
Legal and professional services
Telephone
Marketing
Other operating expenses

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

NET INCOME

See independent auditors' report on supplementary information.
39

$$ 6 22470r

2 L79 662
1 089 678
L t67 528

10 661 569
442 tO2

1 018
ro 2t8 449

240 000

9 974 449

4625 398

4 592

1 909 860
| 74I 283

639 906
| 755 992

(1 130)
46 266

4629990 6 092 t77

1 086

L L25

6 365 47r
L 427 688

737 766
159 995
831 786
185 819
134 066
2t6 to7
247 630
tll 764
90 665

936 47L
2 2LL tt 44s 22A

$ +627zre $ 4 625 398
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$

ELIMINATING
EMRIES

CONSOLIDATED
TOTAI,SI

$ o 224zoL

2 L79 662
1 089 678
I t67 528

10 661 569
442 tO2

1 018
LO 2t8 449

2.+0 0O0

9 978 449

1 909 860
l74L 2a3

639 906
L 755992

(1 13O)

50 858
6 096 769

(4 62s 3e8)

(4 625 398t

6 365 47L
L 427 68a

737 766
159 995
831 786
185 819
134 066
2L6 rO7
2487L6
LLt 764
90 665

937 596

$

tL 447 439

(4 62s 398) $ + 627 779

40
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME

For the Year Ended December 3l ,2016

FNB
COMPAI{Y

THE FIRST
NATIONAL BANK
OF LIVINGSTON

Interest Income:
Interest and fees on loans
Interest on Investment Securities:

Taxable
Exempt from Federal income tax

Interest on deposits in banks
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME

Interest expense on deposits
Interest on Federal funds purchased

NET INTEREST INCOME
Provision for loan losses

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION
FOR LOAN LOSSES

Other Income:
Serwice charges on deposit accounts
Other service charges and fees
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries
Insurance commissions
Brokerage commissions (net)
Other income

TOTAL OTHER INCOME

Other Expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy, insurance and equipment expense
ATM processing
Deposit insurance expense
Data processing
Directors fees
Postage and freight
Printing and oflice supplies
Lrgal and professional services
Telephone
Marketing
Other operating expenses

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE
FEDERAL INCOME TAXES

Federal income taxes (benefit)
NET INCOME

$$ 6 23t 374

L 905 446
1 141 816

976 797
10 255 433

44t tt8
t 205

I 813 110
287 500

9 525 610

4 674 568

t7 44t

2 004 564
I 574 871

453 074
1 6i5 549

58 056
4 692 009 5 706 Lt4

1 056

5 883
1 339

631
113
841
190
116
184
224
119
116
814

560
360
549
500
430
473
361
732
999
7t3
435
539I 92r

9 977 10 576 651

4 682 032 4 655 073
(19 4e4l

4 682 032 4 674 567

See independent auditors' report on supplementary information
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ELIMINATING
ENTRIES

CONSOLIDATED
TOTAI^S

$

(4 674 s68l

$ o 231 374

L905 446
1 141 816

976 797
10 255 433

44t ll8
1 205

9 813 110
247 500

9 525 610

2 004 564
| 574 A7r

453 074
1 615 549

75 497
s 723 555(4 674 568l.

5 883 560
1 339 360

631 549
113 500
841 430
t90 473
116 361
L84 732
226 055
tlg 7t3
116 435
423 460

10 586 628

(4 674 s68l 4662 537
(r9 4941

(4 674 5681 4 682 03t
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CONSOLIDATING SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF LIVINGSTON AND SUBSIDIARIES
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THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF LIVINGSTON AND SUBSIDI.ARIES
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

December 3l,2Ol7

THE FIRST
NATIONAL BANK
OF LIVINGSTON

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks
Interest bearing deposits in banks
Securities available-for- sale
Securities held-to-maturity
Restricted equity securities
Investment in subsidiaries
Loans, less allowance for loan losses
Bank premises and equipment, net
Accrued interest receivable
Goodwill, net
Residential real estate in settlement of loans
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits:

Noninterest-bearing deposits
Interest-bearing deposits

TOTAL DEPOSITS
Accrued interest and other liabilities

TOTAL LI.ABILITIES
Stockholders' Equity:

Common stock
Surplus
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

See independent auditors' report on supplementar5r information
45

$ 17
69

156
1

72r
8
1

3

7lt
436
727
937
57r
435
02t
784
494
031

90
025

42t
000
876
187
520
930
481
230
819
499
000
1061

$ esz 262 069

$ t36 728 724
t92 299 633
329 028 357

1 084 511
330 112 868

479 000
12 612 340
40 844 700
(1 781 839)

52 t54 20t

$ 38226T 069

FrriJ$,ll.LsJ#89,P,*:



CHURCH
STREET

FINANCIAL

POLK COUNTY
TITLE COMPAIIY,

INC.
ELIMINATING

ENTRIES
CONSOLIDATED

TOTALS

$ zss aos $ so tzz $ (33s 037)

(43s e30)

7 0t7

160 924 (t36 O74)

2 000
trt 795
(77 623)

(3s2 O0O)
(111 7es)

2A 696

$ tz 7rr 42r
69 436 000

t56 727 876
1937 L87

57t 520

t2r o2L 48L
I 79t 247
I 494 819
3 031 499

90 000
1 049 956

479 000
t2 6t2 340
40 844 700
(1 781 839)

$$

$ 466806 $ 36 t72 $ (qOZ O+t) $ 381 863 006

$ (47t e42l. $ 136256782
t92299 633

(47t e42) 328 556 415
1 152 39067 879

67 879 (47L 9421 329 708 805

350 000

48 927

398927 36 t72 (43s 099) 52 r54 201

$ +oo aoo $ 36 r72 $ (907 O41) $ SAr 863 006

46
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THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF LTVINGSTON AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

December 3l,2OL6

THE FIRST
NATIONAL BANK
OF LIVINGSTON

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks
Interest bearing deposits in banks
Securities available for sale
Restricted equity securities
Investment in subsidiaries
Loans, less allowance for loan losses
Bank premises and equipment, net
Accrued interest receivable
Goodwill, net
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQI.'ITY
Deposits:

Noninterest-bearing deposits
Leterest-bearing deposits

TOTAL DEPOSITS
Federal funds purchased
Accrued interest and other liabilities

TOTAL LI.ABILITIES
Stockholders' Equity:

Common stock
Surplus
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

TOTAL LI,ABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

See independent auditors' report on supplementary information.
47

$ 10
66

t46

115
9
1

3
1

774
L24
259
570
420
886
030
381
031
015

882
000
596
220
974
163
249
73t
500
708

$ ss+ 495023

$ 115 083 821
185 862 587
300 946 408

2 440 000
1 055 305

304 447 7t3

479 000
t2 6t2 340
38 866 362
(1 904 392)

50 053 310

$ ss+ 49so23
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CHURCH
STREEf,

FINANC[AL

POLK COUNTY
TITLE COMPAI{Y,

INC.
ELIMINATING

ENTRIES
CONSOLIDATED

TOTALS

$ 276 429 $ 36 t72 $ (312 601) $ ro774882
66 t24 000

t46 259 596
570 220

(42O 974)

18 848
115 886 163

I O49 097
1 381 731
3 031 500
1 031 986156 597 (140 319)

$ 4s1.874 $ 36 t72 $ (873 894) $ SS+ 109 17s

$ $ (4s3 7so) $ tt+ 630 071
185 862 587

(4s3 750) 300 492 658
2 440 000
| 123 20767 902

67 902 (453 750) 304 055 865

350 000

$

33972

2 000
LLt 795
(77 623)

(3s2 000)
(111 7es)

43 651

479 000
72 6t2 340
38 866 362
(reo4 s92l

50 053 310343 972 36 L72 (420 t44l

$ +sr sz+ $ 36 t72 $ (873 894) $ SS+ 109 17s
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THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF LIVINGSTON AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME

For the Year Ended December 3L,2Ol7

THE FIRST
NATIONALBANK
OF LIVINGSTON

Interest Income:
Interest and fees on loans
Interest on Investment Securities:

Taxable
Exempt from Federal income tax

Interest on deposits in banks
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME

Interest expense on deposits
Interest on Federal funds purchased

NET IMEREST INCOME

Provision for loan losses
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION

FOR I,OAN LOSSES

Other Income:
Service charges on deposit accounts
Other service charges and fees
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries
Insurance commissions
Brokerage commissions (net)

Management fee

Gain/(loss) other
Other income

TOTAL OTHER INCOME

Other Expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy, insurance and equipment expense
ATM processing
Deposit insurance expense
Data processing
Directors fees
Postage and freight
Printing and offrce supplies
Legal and professional services
Telephone
Marketing
Management fee paid
Other operating oipenses

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

NET INCOME

See independent auditors' report on supplementary information.
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$ o 2247or

2 179 662
1 089 678
L L67 528

10 661 569
442 tO2

1 018
ro 2t8 449

240 000

9 974 449

1 909 860
t 74t 283

639 955

| 755 992

(1 13o)
190 266

6 236 226

5 172 535
1 393 233

737 766
159 995
807 48L
173 819
130 591
202 909
235 5t7
to2 624
79 254

L 571 046
822 507

tt 549 277

$ + 62s 398
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CHURCH
STREET

FINANCIAL
POLK CO. TITLE ELIMINATING

ENTRIES
CONSOLIDATED

TOTAI,SCOMPAI{Y INC.

$$ $ $ 6 224 70L

2 r79 662
1 089 678
t 167 528

10 661 569
442 LO2

1018
to 2ta 449

240 000

I 978 449

639 906

L 57L 06

(63e ess)

(1 571 0z+6)

(144 000)

1 909 860
I 74L 283

639 906
t 755 992

(1 130)
46 266

2 2tO 952 (2 355 001) 6 092 L77

L t92936
178 455 (1,+4 0OO)

(1 s71 046)

6 365 47t
| 427 6AA

737 766
159 995
831 786
185 819
134 066
2t6 LO7

247 630
tlt 764
90 665

24 305
12 000
3 +75

13 198
12 113
9 t40

11 411

I 13 964 936 471
L 570 997 (1 715 0z16) tL 445 228

$ oes sss $ $ (63e ess) $ 4 625 398
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THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF LIVINGSTON AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME

For the Year Ended December 3l,2016

THE FIRST
NATIONALBANK
OF LIVINGSTON

Interest Income:
Interest and fees on loans
Interest on Investment Securities:

Taxable
Exempt from Federal income tax

lnterest on deposits in banks
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME

Interest expense on deposits
Interest on Federal funds purchased

NET Ii{TEREST INCOME

Provision for loan losses
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION

FOR LOAN I,OSSES

Other Income:
Service charges on deposit accounts
Other service charges and fees

Equity in eamings of subsidiaries
Insurance commissions
Brokerage commissions (net)

Management fee

Other income
TOTALOTHER INCOME

Other Expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupanry, insurance and equipment expense
ATM processing
Deposit insurance expense
Data processing
Directors fees

Postage and freight
Printing and ollice supplies
I-egal and professional services
Telephone
Marketing
Management fee paid
Other operating expenses

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE FEDERAL INCOME TAXES
Federal income taxes (benefits)

NET INCOME

See independent auditors' report on supplementary information
51

$ o 23r 374

| 905 446
1 141 816

976 797
10 255 433

441 tt8
1 205

9 813 110

287 500

I 525 610

2 004 564
| 574 871

553 505

833 369

188 056
5 154 365

093
615
549
500
934
473
768
365
965
051
895
918
776

LO O24 902

4 655 073
(t9 494l'

4 442
L 298

631
113

802
178
LL2
L75
2Lr
r07
100
72t
727
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CHURCH
STREET

FINANCIAL
POLK CO. TITLE ELIMINATING

ENTRIES
CONSOLIDATED

TOTAISCOMPAI.IY INC

$$ $ $ 6 231 374

I 905 446
1 141 816

976 797
10 255 433

z+41 118
1 205

9 813 110

287 500

9 525 610

453 074
782 r8L
72L 9L8

(ss3 sos)

(72L 9L8l
(130 000)

2 004 564
L 574 871

453 074
1 615 550

58 056
L957 t73 (1 405 423) 5 706 115

I O4L 467
t70 745 (130 0OO)

(72t el8l

5 883 560
1 339 360

631 549
113 500
841 430
L90 473
116 361
L84 732
224999
ttg 7L3
I 16 435

38 496
12 000
3 593
9 367

13 034
t2 662
15 540

86764 814 540
1 403 668 (8s1918) to 576 652

553 505 (ss3 sos) 4 655 073
(L9 4941

$ (ss3 sos) $

52
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
FNB Company and Subsidiaries
Livingston, Texas

We have audited the accompanyrng consolidated financial statements of FNB Company and
Subsidiaries (an S corporation), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 3L, 2Ol7
and 2016, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in
stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated
financia-l statements.

Manasement's ResponsibiliW for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated hnancial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal
control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe ttrat the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of FNB Company and Subsidiaries as of December 31,2Ol7 and
2016, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Lu{kin, Texas
February 7, 2Ol8

3 m
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks
Interest bearing deposits in banks

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Interest-bearing time deposits in banks
Securities available for sale
Securities held-to-maturity
Restricted equity securitie s
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of
$2,145,687 in 2Ol7 and $2,148 ,346 in 2016

Bank premises and equipment, net
Accrued interest receivable
Goodwill, net
Residential real estate acquired in settlement of loans
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities:

Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing deposits
Interest-bearing deposits

TOTAL DEPOSITS

Federal funds purchased
Accrued interest and other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Stockholders' Equity:
Common stock, $1 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized;

1 30,028 issued, 128,498 outstanding
Surplus
Retained earnings
Treasury stock (1,530 shares at cost)
Accumulated other comprehensive income

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'

EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
4
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$ 4497848 $
t3 2r3 573

3 223 847
7 551 035

t7 7tr 42t
69 436 000

t56 727 876
I 937 t87

57r 520

r2r o2t 48t
8 79t 247
I 494 8t9
3 031 499

90 000
1 049 903

LO 774 882
66 t24 000

146 259 596

570 220

115 886 163
9 049 097
1 381 731
3 031 499

1 031 933
$ sar 862 9s3 $ 354 109 121

$ rso 237 620 $
192 299 633

rt4 6t3 290
185 862 587

328 537 253 300 475 877

1 152 390
2 440 000
I t23 207

329 689 643 304 039 084

130 028
2t 40t oo4
32 860 055

(43s e38)
1 781 839)

52 r73 3tO 50 070 037
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDTARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the Years Ended December 3l,2Ol7 and 2O16

Interest Income:
Interest and fees on loans
Interest on Investment Securities:

Taxable
Exempt from Federal income tax

Interest on deposits in banks
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME

Interest expense on deposits
Interest on Federal funds purchased

NET INTEREST INCOME
Provision for loan losses

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION
FOR LOAN LOSSES

Other Income:
Service charges on deposit accounts
Other service charges and fees
Insurance commissions
Brokerage commissions (net)
Gain/(loss) other
Other income

TOTAL OTHER INCOME

Other Expenses:
Salaries and employee benehts
Occupancy, insurance and equipment expense
ATM processing
Deposit insurance expense
Data processing
Directors fees
Postage and freight
Printing and office supplies
Legal and professional services
Telephone
Marketing
Other operating expenses

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE
FEDERAL INCOME TAXES

Federal income taxes (benefrt)

NET INCOME

The accompanymg notes are an integral part of these frnancial statements.
5

20t7 20t6

$ o 224701 $ 623t 374

2 r79 662
1 089 678
t t67 528

I 905 446
1 i41 816

976 797
10 661 569

442 tO2
1 018

10 255 433
44t tt8

I 205
to 2t8 449

240 000
9 813 110

287 500

9 978 449 9 525 610

i 909 860
| 74t 283

639 906
t 755 992

(1 130)
50 858

2 004 564
I 574 87r

453 074
1 615 549

75 497
6 096 769 5 723 555

6 365 471
1 427 688

737 766
159 995
831 786
185 819
134 066
2t6 to7
248 7t6
rrt 764
90 665

937 596

5 883
1 339

63i
113
841
190
116
t84
226
119
116
a23

560
360
549
500
430
473
361
732
055
7t3
435
460

tt 447 439 10 586 628

4 627 779 4 662 537

(r9 494l,

$ + 627 779 $ + 682 031
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Years Ended December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016

20t7

Net income

Other Comprehensive Income:
Unrealized gains (losses) on available for sale securities

arising during the period
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
6
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FNB COMPAI\IY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For tlre Years Ended December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net

Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Provision for loan losses
Provision for depreciation
Provision (benefit) for deferred taxes
(Gain)/loss on retirement of premises and equipment
FHLB dividends paid in stock
Net amortization (accretion) on investment securities
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable
(Increase) decrease in other assets
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest and other liabilities

NgT CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of interest-bearing time deposit in banks
Maturities of interest-bearing time deposit in banks
Purchases of available-for-sale securities
Payments received on mortgage backed securities
Proceeds from maturities/ calls/ sales of available-for-sale securities
Proceeds from maturities / calls of held -to-maturity securities
Purchases of held-to-maturity securities
Net decrease/(increase) in loans
Purchases of premises and equipment
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment
Purchases of Federal Home Loan Bank Stock
Proceeds from sale ofother real estate

NET CASH USED BY IM/ESTING ACTTVITIES

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Net increase (decrease) in noninterest-bearing deposits
Net (decrease) increase in interest bearing deposits
Purchase of treasury stock
Purchase of Federal funds sold (net)
Distributions paid

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED)BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

Supplemental Information:
Cash Paid During the Year for:

Interest
Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities:

Distributions declared but not paid
Increase (decrease) in securities available for sale

due to unrealized gains/losses
Transfer ofloans to other real estate

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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566 733
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FNB Company (the "Company"), is a holding company that owns all of the capital stock of The
First National Bank of Livingston (the "Bank'), which in turn owns all the capital stock of Church
Street Financial, ("Church") and Polk County Title Company, Inc., ("Polk") (Note 15). "Bank", "Church"
and "Polk" are referred to as the subsidiaries in these statements. The Bank's main office is located in
Livingston, Texas with branches located in Livingston, Texas, and Onalaska, Texas. The Bank
represents approximately 88% of the total gross revenues on the consolidated statements of income at
December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016.

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company and its subsidiaries conform significantly
to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of American (GAAP) and practices
within the banking industry. The following is a description of the more significant of those policies.

Principles of Consolidation :

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Nature of Operations:

The Company provides a variety of financial services to individuals and corporate customers
through its subsidiaries in Polk County, Texas. The subsidiary Bank's primary deposit products are
demand deposits and certificates of deposit. Its primary lending products are consumer, commercial,
real estate and single family residential loans. Church provides investment services through its location
in Livingston Texas.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the
determination of the fair value of securities available for sale, the allowance for losses on loans and the
valuation of other real estate owned. In connection with the determination of the allowances for losses
on loans and valuation of other real estate owned, management may obtain independent appraisals.

While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans and other real estate
owned, future additions to the allowances may be necessary based on changes in local economic
conditions, other risk characteristics applicable to portfolio segments or borrowers' circumstances. In
addition, regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the
Bank's allowances for losses on loans and foreclosed real estate. Such agencies may require the Bank
to recognize additions to the allowances based on their judgments about information available to them
at the time of their examination.

As a result of the changes inherent in the estimation process, m€u:ragement's estimate of the fair
value of securities available for sale, the allowance for losses on loans and the valuation of other real
estate owned may change in the near term.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents, for purposes of the statement of cash flows, include cash and due
from banks, Federal funds sold and certain investment securities and interest bearing deposits in
banks with original maturities of three months or less.

9
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCI,AL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Investment Securities:

Securities classified as held-to-maturity are those debt securities the Company has both the
intent and ability to hold to maturity regardless of changes in market conditions, liquidity needs or
changes in general economic conditions. These securities are carried at cost, adjusted for
amortization of premium and accretion of discount, computed using the interest method, over their
contractual lives.

Securities classified as available-for-sale are equity securities with readily determinable fair
values and those debt securities that the Company intends to hold for an indefinite period of time
but not necessarily to maturity. Any decision to sell a security classified as available-for-sale would
be based on various factors, including significant movement in interest rates, changes in the
maturity mix of the Company's assets and liabilities, liquidity needs, regulatory capital
considerations, and other similar factors. These securities are carried at estimated fair value based
on information provided by a third party pricing service with an unrealized gains or losses excluded
from net income and reported in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), which is reported
as a separate component of stockholders' equity.

Dividend and interest income, including amortiz,ation of premium and accretion of discount
arising at acquisition, from all categories of investment securities are included in interest income in
the consolidated statements of income.

Gains and losses realized on sales of investments securities, determined using the adjusted
cost basis of the specific securities sold, are included in noninterest income in the consolidated
statements of income. Additionally, declines in the estimated fair value of individual investment
securities below their cost that are other-than-temporary are reflected as realized losses in the
statements of income. Factor affecting the determination of whether an other-than-tempora4r
impairment has occurred include, among other things, (i) the length of time and extent to which the
fair value has been less than cost, (ii) the financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer,
(iii) that the Company does not intend to sell these securities, and (iv) it is more likely than not that
the Company will not be required to sell before a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated
recovery in fair value.

Restricted stock consists of stock from the Federal Reserve Bank, Texas Independent Bank
and the Federal Home Loan Bank, which are restricted as to their marketability. Because no ready
market exists for these investments and they have no quoted market value, the Bank's investment in
these stocks are carried at cost. The Bank is required to maintain certain stock balances in the
Federal Reserve Bank and the Federal Home Loan Bank.

Loans:

Loans are stated at the amount of unpaid principal, reduced by the undisbursed portion of
construction loans (construction loans in process), unearned discount and an allowance for loan
losses. The major loan portfolio segments include Commercial, ReaI Estate, Installment, Overdrafts,
Consumer and Other. Within these categories, loans are secured most significantly by real estate, but
are also secured by account receivables, inventory, income producing commercial properties, personal
properties such as vehicles and boats and other items of property, plant and equipment. A small
segment of consumer loans are unsecured.

Interest on loans is calculated by using the simple interest method on the daily balances of the
principal amounts outstanding. The recognition of income on a loan is discontinued, and previously
accrued interest is reversed when, in the opinion of management, it is probable that the borrower will
be unable to meet payments as they become due. This generally occurs when the loan becomes 9O
days delinquent, but may occur sooner should borrower circumstance dictate.

10
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FNB COMPAI\IY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual or charged off is
reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or
cost-recovery method, until quali$ring for return to accrual. l,oans are returned to accrual status when
all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future pa5rments are
reasonably assured.

Loan origination and commitment fees are recognizr"d as income when received. Direct loan
origination costs are e>rpensed when paid. Financial Accounting Standards Board Codification Section
310.20 Non-Refunfiable Fees and Costs requires the net effect of loan origination and commitment fees
and certain direct loan origination costs to be deferred and recogniznd over the life of the related loan
as an adjustment of yield. FNB Company and Subsidiaries do not feel the application of this standard
would have a material effect on the Bank's financial position or results of operations.

Allowance for Loan Losses:

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through
a provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when
management believes the uncollectability of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if
any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance is based on two basic principles of accounting: (i) FASB ASC 450,
Contingencies, which requires that losses be accrued when they are probable of occurring and
estimable and (ii) FASB ASC 3LO, Receiuables, which requires that losses or impaired loans be
accrued based on the differences between the loan balance and either the value of collateral, if such
loans are considered to be collateral dependent and in the process of collection, or the present value
of future cash flows, or the loan's value as observable in the secondar5r market. A loan is considered
impaired when, based on current information and events, the Company has concerns about the
ability to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the
contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining
impairment include payment status, collateral value and the probability of collecting scheduled
principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and
payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines that signilicance
of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all the
circumstances surrounding the loan and borrower, including the length of delay, the reasons for the
delay, the borrower's prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the
principal and interest owned.

The Company's allowance for loan losses has three basic components: the specific allowance,
the formula allowance and the pooled allowance. Each of these components is determined based
upon estimates that can and do change when the actual events occur. As a result of the
uncertainties inherent in the estimation process, management's estimate of loan losses and the
related allowance could change in the near term.

The specilic allowance component is used to individually establish an allowance for loans
identilied for impairment testing. When impairment is identified, a specific reserve may be
established based on the Company's calculation of the estimated loss embedded in the individual
loan. Impairment testing includes consideration of the borrower's overall financial condition,
resources and payment record, support available form financial guarantors and the fair value of
collateral. These factors are combined to estimate the probability and severity of inherent losses.
Large groups of smaller balance, homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment.
Accordingly, the Company does not separately evaluate individual consumer and residential loans for
impairment.
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

The formula allowance component is used for estimating the loss on internally risk rated
loans exclusive of those identified as impaired. The loans meeting the Company's internal criteria for
classilication, such as special mention, substandard, doubtful and loss, as well as specilically
identified impaired loans, are segregated from performing loans within the portfolio. These internally
classif,red loans are then grouped by loan type (commercial, real estate, installment, overdrafts, and
consumer and other). Each loan type is assigned an allowance factor based on management's
estimate of the associated risk, complexity, and size of the individual loans within the particular loan
category. Classilied loans are assigned higher allowance factor than non-classified loans due to
management's concerns regarding collectability or management's knowledge of particular elements
surrounding the borrower. Allowance factors increase with the worsening of the internal risk rating.

The pooled formula component is used to estimate the losses inherent in the pools of non-
classified loans. These loans are then also segregated by loan type and allowance factors are
assigned by management based on delinquencies, loss history, trends in volume and terms of loans,
effects of changes in lending policy, the experience and depth of management, national and local
economic trends, concentration of credit, results of the loan review system and the effect of external
factors (i.e. competition and regulatory requirements).

Allowance factors and overall size of the allowance may change from period to period based
on management's assessment of the above-described factors and the relative weights given to each
factor. In addition, various regulatory agencies periodically review the allowance for loan losses.
These agencies may require the Bank to make additions to the allowance for loan losses based on
their judgements of collectability based on information available to them at the time of their
examination.

Management considers loans impaired when, based on current information, it is probable
that the Company will not collect all principal and interest paJrments according to contractual terms.
Loans are evaluated for impairment in accordance with the Company's portfolio monitoring and
ongoing risk assessment procedures. Management considers the financial condition of the borrower,
cash flow of the borrower, payment status of the loan, and the value of the collateral, if any, securing
the loan. Generally, impaired loans do not include large groups of smaller balance homogenous loans
such as residential real estate and consumer tJpe loans which are evaluated collectively for
impairment and are generally placed on nonaccrual when loan becomes 90 days past due as to
principal or interest. Loans specifically reviewed for impairment are not considered impaired during
periods of "minimal delay" in pa5rment (90 or less) provided eventual collection of all amounts due is
expected. The impairment of a loan is measured based on the present value of expected future cash
flows, discounted at the loan's effective interest rate, or the fair value of the collateral il repayment is
expected to be provided solely by the collateral. In appropriate circumstances, interest income on
impaired loans may be recognized on a cash basis.

The Company's charge-off policy states after all collection efforts have been exhausted and
the loan is deemed to be a loss, it will be charged to the Company's established allowance for loan
losses. Consumer loans subject to the Uniform Retail Credit Classification are charged off as follows:
(a) closed end loans are charged-off no later than 120 days a-fter becoming delinquent, (b) consumer
loans to borrowers who subsequently declare bankruptcy, where the Company is an unsecured
creditor, are charged-off within 60 days of receipt of notification from the bankruptcy court, (c)
fraudulent loans are charged-off within 9O days of discovery and (d) death of borrower will cause a
charge-off to be incurred at such time an actual loss is determined. All other types of loans are
generally evaluated for loss potential at the 90th day past due threshold, and any loss is recognized
no later than the 120tt day past due threshold; each loss is evaluated on its specific facts regarding
the appropriate timing to recognized loss.
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Other Real Estate Owned and Other Assets Acquired in Settlement of Loans:

Other real estate owned and other assets acquired in settlement of loans are recorded at the
balance of the loan or at estimated fair value less cost of sale, at the date acquired, plus capital
improvements made thereafter to facilitate sale. Adjustments are made to reflect declines, if any, in fair
values below the recorded amounts at the date of foreclosure and charged to the allowance for losses
on loans. Declines in value subsequent to repossession are charged to a loss provision which is
included in other expenses on the consolidated statements of income. Costs of holding real estate and
other assets acquired in setflement of loans are reflected in income currently. Gains on sales of such
assets are taken into income based on the buyer's initial and continuing investment in the property
and reflected as part of other income on the consolidated statements of income. Other assets acquired
in settlement of loans consist primarily of reacquired personal property.

During 2017, one property (and related improvements) was acquired through foreclosure. The
properly had an approximate book value of $t |Z,ZOO. Subsequent to repossession, the valuation of the
property declined to $90,000. The $22,200 reduction in valuation was charged against the allowance
for loan and lease losses reserye. The property vras not sold during the year and is carried on the
balance sheet at $SO,OOO.

During the years ended December 31 ,2Ol7 and 2016, investments in mortgage loans secured
by residential real estate properties where formal foreclosure procedures were in process totaled $-0-
and $ 1 l2,2OO, respectively.

Insignificant amounts of other assets acquired in settlement of loans were repossessed during
2Ol7 and2Ol6.

Bank Premises and Equipment:

Bank premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The
provision for depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based on estimated useful lives
of the assets. Expenditures for improvements, which extend the life of an asset, are capitalized and
depreciated over asset's remaining useful life. Gains or losses rediznd on the disposition of properties
and equipment are reflected in the statements of income. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance
are charged to operating expenses as incurred.

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments:

In the ordinary course of business the Bank has entered into off-balance sheet finalcial
instruments consisting of commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit and overdraft lines of
credit. Such linancial instruments are recorded in the financial statements when they are funded and
at that time become subject to management's evaluation related to collectability.

Self-Insurance:

The Company is primarily self-insured for costs related to employee health care benefits, of
which a portion is paid by the employees. Liabilities associated with these risks are estimated in part
by considering historical claims experience and other assumptions. The Company has purchased stop
loss coverage to limit exposure to claims. At December 3l,2Ol7 a,nd 2016, the Company had recorded
approximately $24,000 and $-O-, respectively, as an accrual for this liability.

The assumptions underlying the ultimate costs of existing claim losses are unpredictable,
which can aIlect the liability recorded for such claims. Although the Company's estimates of liabilities
incurred do not anticipate significant changes in historical trends for these variables, any changes
could have a significant impact on future claim costs and current recorded liabilities.
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Income Taxes:

Effective January I,2OlO, the Company elected to become a subchapter S corporation. Under
subchapter S guidelines, all federal taxable income is attributable to the Company shareholders
individually. (See Note 8)

The Company is required to pay tax to the State of Texas based on gross margin (as de{ined).
This tax has been deemed an income tax by the Financial Accounting Standards Board and
consequently requires accrual in the year the taxable gross margin is earned. For the years presented,
the Consolidated Statements of Income reflects approximately $t1,OO0 and $(4,000) as state income
tax expense (benelit) included in "Other Operating Expenses".

Sales Taxes:

Sales and use taxes and other such pass through state taxes are not recorded in the
consolidated statements of income, but are instead collected and remitted through a liability account.

Goodwill:

The Company does not amortizn goodwill, but instead, evaluates goodwill for impairment at
least annually and adjusts accordingly in accordance with GAAP. The Company does not believe any
impairment of goodwill exists at December 31, 2Ol7 , based on its evaluation.

Brokeraqe Commissions :

Brokerage commissions paid to Bank from its broker-dealer are net of various fees (see Note
17).

Fair Values of Financial Instruments:

The Company follows the guidance of FASB ASC 825, Financial Inshuments, and FASB ASC
82O, Fair Value Measurement. This guidance permits entities to measure many financial instruments
and certain other items at fair value. The objective is to improve financia-l reporting by providing
entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related
assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. This
guidance clarifies the fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants.
Under this guidance, fair value measurements are not adjusted for transaction costs. This guidance
established a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level
3 measurements).

Comprehensive Income:

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be
included in net income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealizrd gains
and losses on available-for-sa1e securities, are reported as a separate component of tJ:e equity section
of the balance sheet, such items, along with net income, are components of comprehensive income.
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Uncertain Tax Positions:

FASB Corlification Section 740 requires recognition, measurement and disclosure of uncertain
tax positions. The Company currently accounts for uncertain tax positions based on the estimated
likelihood of assessment and has determined that no tax positions (for interest, penalties or otherwise)
require an accrual based on current standards of accounting. The Company is generally no longer
subject to Federal tax examinations for tax years before 2014.

Advertisine:

The Company expenses a-11 advertising costs as incurred. These are included on the
Consolidated Statements of Income as marketing expenses.

Reclassihcations:

Certain reclassihcations have been made to the prior period's financial statements in order to
conform to the classifications used for the current year. These reclassilications had no effect on the
capital, net income or net cash flows of the Bank.

Subsequent Events:

Management has evaluated subsequent events through February 7 ,2OL8, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

New Authoritative Accountinq Guidance:

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (the FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update
(ASC) 201-Ol, Financial Instruments-Ouerall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of
Financial Assets qnd Financial Liabilities. The amendments in this Update make targeted
improvements to GAAP as follows: (1) Require equity investments to be measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in net income. (2) Simplify the impairment assessment of equity
investments without readily determinable fair values by requiring a qualitative assessment to identify
impairment. When a qualitative assessment indicates that impairment exists, an entity is required to
measure the investment at fair value. (3) Eliminate the requirement for public business entities to
disclose the method(s) and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value that is required to
be disclosed for linancial instruments measured at atnortized cost on the balance sheets. (4) Require
public business entities to use the exit price notion when measuring fair value of financial
instruments for disclosure pulposes. (5) Clarify that an entity should evaluate the need for a
valuation allowance on a deferred tax asset related to available-for-sa]e securities in combination
with the entity's other deferred tax assets. This ASU will be effective for Iinancial institutions other
than public business entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods
within fisca1 years beginning after December 15, 2019. The Company does not expect the guidance to
have a material impact on its financial statements.

The FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit .Losses (Topic 326):
Measurement of Credit l,osses on Financial Instrumenfs. Current GAAP requires and incurred loss
methodolory for recogn2ing credit losses that delays recognition until it is probable a loss has been
incurred. Users of financial statements expressed concern that current GAAP restricts the ability to
record credit losses that are expected, but do not yet meet the probable threshold. The main objective
of the ASU is to provide financial statement users with more decision-useful information about the
expected credit losses on financial instruments and other commitments to extend credit held by
reporting entity at each reporting date. To achieve this objective, the amendments in this Update
replace the incurred loss impairment methodologr in current GAAP with methodologr that reflects
expected credit losses and requires consideration of a broader range of reasonable and supportable
information to inform credit loss estimates. This ASU will be effective for financial institutions other
than public entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2O2O, and interim periods within
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021. At this time, the Company has not determined the
impact on its financial statements.
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FNB COMPAI\IY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

The FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flouls (Topic 230): Classification of Ceftain
Cash Receipts and Cash Payments, which made the following changes that may affect the Company:
(1) Debt Prepayment or Debt Extinguishment Costs: Cash payments for debt prepayment or debt
extinguishment costs should be classified as cash flows from financing activities. (2) Proceeds from
Settlement of Bank-Owned Life Insurance Policies: Cash proceeds received from the settlement of
bank-owned life insurance policies should be classified as cash flows from investing activities. The
cash payments for premiums on bank-owned policies may be classified as cash flows for investing
activities, operating activities, or a combination of investing and operating. The amendments in the
ASU will be effective for entities other than public business entities for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2018, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 20i9. The
Company does not expect the guidance to have a material impact on its financial statements.

NOTE 2 - II{VESTMENT SECURITIES

The carrying amount of investment securities as shown in the consolidated balance sheets of
the Company and their fair values at December 3l,2Ol7 and2Ol6, were as follows:

AMORTIZED
COST

GROSS
UNREALIZED

GAIN

GROSS
UNREALIZED

I,oSSES
FAIR

VALUE
Securities Available for Sale:

December 31,2017;
U.S. agency securities
State and municipal securities
Residential mortgage

backed securities
Other securities

December 31, 2016:
U.S. agency securities
State and municipal securities
Residential mortgage

backed securities
Other securities

278
673

965
765

$ 92 534 293 $
44 758 826

2720 $
37t 873

(1 s71 735) $ sO
(36s 026) 44

2L 216 595 t39 979 (3se 64e)

$ rss 5097L4 $ Sr+ SZZ $ (2 296 4r0l $ rso 727 876

20 996 925

$ 70946741 $
5t 54t 223

49 511 $
772 0,03

(L e64 624) $
(soS s51)

69 031 628
51 804 675

25 676 024 222 703 (47s 4341 25 423 293

$ r+a 163 988 $ r O44 2r7 $ (2 948 609) $ r+O 259 596

AMORTIZED
COST

GROSS
UNREALIZED

GAIN

GROSS
UNREALIZED

I,oSSES
PAIR

VALUE
Held-to-Maturity:

December 31,2017:,
State and municipal securities $ 1 937 i87 $ S ZOO $ (30 964) $ r gOg +Zs

$ r 937 187 $ e ZOO $ (30 964) $ r 909 423

No securities were sold in either period presented.

The carrying amount and fair value of investment securities at December3l, 2017, by
contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities
because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment
penalties.
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 2 - II{VESTMENT SECURITIES - CONTINUED

The scheduled maturities of debt securities at December 3I, 2Ol7 , were as follows:

AVAILAE}LE-FOR-SALE
SECURITIES

HELD-TO-MATURITY
SECURITIES

AMORTIZED
COST

FAIR
VALUE

AMORTIZED
COST

FAIR
VALUE

Due in one year or less
Due from one to hve years
Due from five to ten years
Over ten years
Mortgage-backed securities

$ t7 223878 $
53 978 424
64 987 752

1 103 064
2t 216 596

17 279990 $
53 334 444
64 027 754
I O88 762

20 996 926

$
1 056 950

880 237
1 053 200

856 223

$ 158 509 714 $ 156 727 876 $ r 937 r87 $ 1 9O9 423

Investment securities with a fair value of approximately $35,392,OOO and $34,799,000 at
December 3l ,2017 and 2016, respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits and for other
purposes required or permitted by law.

Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2Ol7 end
2016, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a
continuous loss position follows:

LESSTHAN 12 MONTHS 12 MONTHS OR GREATER TOTAL

De scription of Securities:
December 3 1, 20 17
AnllcblG-for-Sale
Scarltlc:

U.S. Agency Securities
State and municipal
Mortgage-backed
scurities

Held-to-Uatltdty
Seorltles:

State and municipal

December 31, 2016
Anallable-for-8de

Secrrritles:
U.S. Agency Securities
State and municipal
Mortgage-backed
scurities

FAIR

$ 2a6rr223 $
$ 13 37s s04 $

$ s7 s61 298 $
$ 23 838 284 $

VALUE
UNREALIZED

LOSSES
FAIR

VALUE
UNREALIZED

LOSSES
FAIR

VALUE
UNREALIZED

tr)ssEs

lt73 796l.
(e8 1s6)

lr 964 6241 $
(49e s71) $

$ s7 3s2 962 $
$ t3 441 425 $

t 959 7'26

AXUY&RODE

$ 8s 964 185 $
$ 26 816 929 $

r 397 939)
1266 87Ol

(301 782)

(1 s7l 73s)
(36s 026)

$ 6263923 $ (s7 8671 $ 10 s42 434 $

$ 137724A $ (30 e64) $

$ 16 806 3s7 $ (3s9 649)

$ $ t 377 24A $ (30 964)

$
$

$

(8 e80)
$
$

57 56t 294
2s 798 010

$ 18 934 713

(l 964 6'24)
(s08 ssl)

l47s 434)

$
$

$$ 18 9s4 713 $ (47s 434) $

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment on a periodic basis.
Consideration is given to (1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than
cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of
the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any
anticipated recovery in fair value.

Debt securities with unrealized losses have depreciated 1.75% arrd2.8Oo/o from the Company's
amortized cost basis at December 31, 2Ol7 and 2016, respectively. These securities are guaranteed by
the U.S. Government, agencies thereof or municipalities. These unrealized losses relate principally to
current interest rates for similar tSrpes of securities. In analyzing an issuer's financial condition,
management considers whether the securities are issued by the Federal government or its agencies,
whether downgrades by bond rating agencies have occurred, and the results of reviews of the issuer's
financial condition. As management has the ability to hold debt securities until maturity, or for the
foreseeable future if classified as available-for-sale, no declines are deemed to be other-than-temporary.
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 3 - LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The Company's goal is to mitigate risk from an unforeseen threat to the loan portfolio as a
result of an economic downturn or other negative influences. Plans that aid in mitigating these
potential risks in managing the loan portfolio include: enforcing loan policies and procedures,
evaluating the borrower's business plan through the loan term, identifying and monitoring primary
and alternative sources of repa5rment, and obtaining adequate collateral to mitigate loss in the event
of liquidation. Specific reserves are established based on credit and/or collateral risks on an
individual loan basis. A risk rating system is used to estimate potential loss exposure and to provide
a measuring system for setting general and specific reserve allocations.

As of December 31, 2017, the real estate loan portfolio constituted 78%o of the total loan
portfolio. This can be broken down further into the following categories: 54.74o/o residential real
estate, 17.57o/o commercial real estate, and 5.09% land development loans, as a percentage of total
loans.

The Company's construction and land development loans are secured by real property where
the loans funds will be used to acquire land and to construct or improve appropriately zoned real
property for the creation of income producing or owner occupied commercial properties. Borrowers
are generally required to put equity into the project at levels determined by the loan committee and
usually are underwritten with a maximum term of 24 months.

Commercial real estate loans are secured by improved real property which is generating
income in the normal course of business. Debt service coverage, assuming stabilized occupancy,
must be satisfied to support a pennanent loan. The debt service coverage ratio is ordinarily at 1.20 to
1.00. These loans are generally underwritten with a term not greater than 20 years or the remaining
useful life of the property, whichever is lower.

Residential real estate loans are secured by improved real property of the borrower and are
underwritten with terms up to 3O years.

The Company also makes commercial and industrial loans for a variety of purposes, which
include working capital, equipment and account receivable financing. This category represents 10%
of the loan portfolio at December 31, 2Ol7 . I,oans in this category generally carry a variable interest
rate. Commercial loans meet reasonable underwriting standards, including appropriate collateral
and cash flow necessary to support debt service. Personal guarantees are generally required, but may
be limited.

Outstandine loans:

The tables below present an aged analysis of the Bank's loan portfolio by major loan
classilication as of December 3l,2Ol7 and December 3L, 2016.

o-59
DAYS
PAST
DUE

$ 311 289 $
2 6t7 530

60-89
DAYS
PAST
DUE

-g
8 r88

GREATER
THAN

90 DAYS
PASTDUE

TOTAL
PAST DUE CURRENT

BAI"ANCE
DECEMBER 31,

20t7
Commercial
Real estate
Installment
Overdrafts
Consumer and other

Construction loans
in process

Allowance for loan
losses

945726 22 rA2
$ 3914s4s s gO37o S

913 1 008 821

$ 311 289 $
2 625 7ta

11 451 630 $
96 9t1 904

279 371
t3 856 282

tt 762 919
99 537 622

279 371
14 865 103

913 $ 3 945 828 $ t22 499 ta7 126 445 0t5

(3 277 8471
123 167 168

(2 L45 6871
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 3 - LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES - CONTINUED

0-59
DAYS
PAST
DUE

60-89
DAYS
PAST
DUE

GREATER
THAN

90 DAYS
PAST DUE

TOTAL
PAST DUE CURRE},IT

BAI-ANCE
DECEMBER 31,

20t6
Commercial
ReaI estate
Installment
Overdrafts
Consumer and other

Construction ioans
in process

Unearned discount

$ 42a7t $
4 521 393

$ 428711 $
4 728 685

1 tt4 629

12 t34 524
a5 278 547

1 985
262 594

16 464 301

t2 563 239
90 007 272

1 985
262 594

$ $
a6 925 t20 367

1 095 879 18 750
$ 6 o4s 983 s rOS Ozs s

t7 574 930
r2o367 $ 6272O2s $ rr+ ]4r999 120 4t4 024

12 379 49O)
t2s)

I 18 034 509
Allowance for loan

losses (2 L48 346],
$ _______l_1_E_qq9_E9__

Nonaccrual Loans:

The table below includes the Bank's nonaccrual loans, including nonperforming trouble debt
restructures and loans past due 90 days, or more at December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016.

NONACCRUAL LOANS
ACCRUING PAST DUE

90 DAYS OR MORE
DECEMBER 31 DECEMBER 31

20t7 20L6 20t7 20t6
Commercial
Real estate
Consumer

TOTAL

$ g+ zsr
3t9 669

54 793
203 357
81 559

$ .+69 213 $ 284 916 $

$ $ $

$

The difference between interest income that would have been recorded under the original terms
of such loans and that which was recorded is not significant to these financial statements.

Real estate loans consist of residential (78% in 2Ol7 arrd 74yo in 2016) and commercial (22oh in
2Ol7 and26%oin2016). All past due real estate loans are in the residential category at December3l,
2Ol7 artd2016.

Credit Oualitv Indicators:

The Bank monitors credit quality within its major loan classifications. The results of this
classification process is a factor in the risk characteristics used in establishing the allowance for loan
losses. These loans are evaluated and internally classified by the Bank as pass, special mention,
substandard, doubtful or loss.

Pass - An asset classified pass is one that does not possess any weaknesses by management
sufficient to warrant a more adverse classification.

Special Mention - A special mention asset has potential weakeesses that deserve management's
close attention. If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the
repa5rment prospects for the asset or in the institution's credit position at some future date.
Special mention assets are not adversely classified and do not expose an institution to sufficient
risk to warrant adverse classification.

Substandard - A substandard asset is inadequately protected by the current sound worth and
payrng capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Assets so classilied must have
a well-defined weakness, or weaknesses, that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They are
characteiz-ed by the distinct possibility that the bank will sustain some loss if the deficiencies
are not corrected.
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCI-AL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 3 - LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES - CONTINUED

Doubtful - An asset classified doubtful has all the weaknesses inherent in one classified
substandard with the added characteristic that the wealoeesses make collection or liquidation
in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and
improbable.

Loss - Assets classified loss are considered uncollectible and of such little value that their
continuance as bankable assets is not warranted. This classification does not mean that the
asset has absolutely no recovery or salvage value, but rather that it is not practical or desirable
to defer writing off this basically worthless asset even though partial recovery may be effected in
the future. Amounts classified as loss are generally charged off to the allowance for loan losses
upon such classification.

The remaining loans are classified as pass. The following presents the Bank's loan classification
as of December 31, 2Ol7 and 2016 by its major loan classilications.

2017

PASS
SPECIAL
MENTION SUBSTANDARD DOUBTFUL LOSS TOTAL

Commercial
Real estate
Installment
Overdrafts
Consumer and other

TOTAL

$ 11 114 807 $
93 922 904

279 37r
t4 360 215

$ rrs 611 297 $

$
21 828

5 724
zz ssz g

s61 043 $
2229 336

481 003

87 069 $
a5 707

18 161

$ rt 762919
96 259 775

279 371
14 865 103

3271 382 $ 190 937 $ $ 123 167 168

2016

PASS
SPECIAL
MENTION LOSS TOTALSUBSTANDARD DOUBTFUL

Commercial
ReaI estate
Installment
Overdrafts
Consumer and other

TOTAL

10 626 709
87 442 557

1 960
262 598

t7 032 r99

$ 27t7e $

35 862

$ 1 909 351
tas 225

496 0r8

$ $ $ 12 s63 239
87 627 782

1 960
262 598

fi 57493014 851
$ rrs 366o23 $____q!_Q1_l_ $ 2s90s94 $ 14 8s1 $ $ 118 034 so9

Allowance for Credit Loss:

The detail below reflects the changes in the allowance for loan losses by the Bank's major loan
classifications for the years ended December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016:

COM. REAL OVER- CONSUMER UN-
MERCIAL ESTATE DRAFTS AND OTHER ALLOCATED TOTAL

146095$1073349$101686$324920$+ZSAZO$2071920
(36 607) (133 4s6) (e1 121) l26t 184)

38 357 11 753 50 110
(36 607)
65 826

(es 09e)
90 751

(79 368],
129 316

(2rr o74l
ro 284 (8 6771 247 500

ALLOWANCE FOR T,OAN

LOSSES DECEMBER 31, 2015 $
Loans charged off
Recoveries of loans

previously charged off
NET CHARGE OFFS

Provision for loan and lease losses
ALLOWANCE POR I,oAN

LOSSES DECEMBER 3I, 2016
loans charged off
Recoveries of loans

previously charged off
NET CHARGE OFFS

Provision for loan and lease losses
ALIOWANCE FOR LOAN

LOSSES DECEMBER 3I,2OI7 $

t75 314
(18 82s)

I O83 633 97 334 374 86a 4t7 t93 2 t4a 346
(22 2oo) (14s 432)

4t 628

(111 4s4)

t3 624

(297 911],

55 252
(r8 82s)
67 029

(22 2ool
204 484

(103 804)
t32 239

(e7 830)
a5 425 (249 t77l

(242 659]'
240 000

223srg$126s917$tZSzzZ$S0Z+0S$rOSOrO$214s6A7
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCI,AL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 3 - LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES - CONTINUED

The table below represents the allowance and the carrying value of outstanding loans and
leases by portfolio segment at December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016:

INSTALL OVER-

DECEMBER 3I 2017

REAL

ESTATE MENT DRAFTS TOTAL

coM-
MERCIAL

CONSUMER

AND OTHER

Impated Loans and Trouble

Debt Restructurings:

Allowance for loans and
lease losses

Unpaid principal balance

Allowance as a percentage

of unpaid principal balance

Collectively Evaluated for
Impairment:

Allowance for loans and

lease losses

Unpaid principal balance
Allowance as a percentage

of unpaid principal balance

Total:
Allowance for loans and

leam losss
Unpaid principal balance
Allowance as a p€rcentage

of unpaid principal balance

DECEMBER 31, 2016

39.49o/o

$ 1s8 7e9 $

$ rr s99 024 $

t.37yo

$ 223 s18 $
g rr762919 $

1.900/o

COM.
MERCIAL

$

$

$

$

$
$

362 463

14 865 103

1.760/o 43.O2o/o

$ 12s773 $
$ 279 371 $

$ 12s773 $

$ 279 37t $

$

$

$

$

64 719

163 895
$
$

$

$

$
$

91 548
7t4 272

12.82o/"

L 174 369

95 545 503

1.23o/o

t 265 917

96 259 775

t.320/o

REAL

ESTATE

tos 297
228 422

$
$

26t 564
r 106 589

23.640/"

I 7t6 tO7

t22 060 579

t.4tvo

t,610/o

TOTAL

| 977 67t
123 167 168

52 995
449 043

20.86vo

I 030 638

87 373 749

o/o

o/o

o/o

o/o

r 960

Yo

I 960

o/o

93 sO4

253 993

36.81o/o

28t 364
t7 324937

374 868
t7 578930

169 189

420 724

1 731 153

ll8 034 509

46.l0o/"

257 166
14 636 681

o/o

$

$

$
$

$

$
$
$

$

$

$

$

2.44yo 45.020/o

INSTALL
MENT

CONSUMER

AND OTHER

OVER-

DRAFTS

Impaired lrans and Trouble

Debt Restructurings:

Allowance for loans and
lease losses

Unpaid principal balance

Allowance as a percentage

of unpaid principal balance

Collectively Evaluated for
Impairment:

Allowance for loans and

lease losses

Unpaid principal balance

Allowance as a percentage

of unpaid principal balance
Totsl:

Allowance for loans and

lease losses

Unpa.id principal balance

Allowance as a percentage

of unpaid principal balance

22 690
1 17 690

19.28o/o

i L52624 $

$ 12 445 s49 $

$

$

$

$

$

$

1.23o/"

$ r7s 314 $
$ 12 s63 239 $

l.l8o/o

1 083 633

87 627 782

$

$

$
$

1.620/o 37.O7o/o

o/o

$ 97338 $

$ 262 se8 $

$ 97338 $
$ 262s9a $

27.O4o/o

I 561 964
I l7 408 833

1.33olo

L.4oo/o t.24yo

2t

2.13o/o 37.O7Vo 1.47o/o
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FNB COMPAI.IY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 3 - LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES - CONTINUED

Impaired Loans and Trouble Debt Restructurines:

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable
that the Bank will be unable to collect all amounts due from the borrower in accordance with the
contractual terms of the loan. Information on impaired loans for the years ended December 31, 2Ol7
and 2016 are as follows:

DECEMBER 31 2017
UNPAID

PRINCIPAL
BALANCE

CARRYING
VALUE

REI-ATED
ALI,OWANCE

AVERAGE
CARRYINC
AMOUNT

With no Related Allowance Recorded:
Commercial
ReaI estate
Consumer and other

TOTAL
With an Allowance Recorded:

Commercial
Real estate
Consumer and other

TOTAL
Total:

Commercial
Real estate
Consumer and other

TOTAL

With no Related Allowance Recorded:
Commercial
ReaI estate.
Consumer and other

TOTAL
With an Allowance Recorded:

Commercial
Real estate
Consumer and other

TOTAL
Total:

Commercial
ReaI estate
Consumer and other

TOTAL

$ 1 106 s88 $ S+S OZ+ $ 261 564 $ 748281

DECEMBER 31,2016

$

$

$ $ $
170 158
27 467

170 158
27 A6t

130 658
32 049

198 019 198 019 t62 707

163 895
544 113
200 561

99 t76
452 565

95 264
647 005

64 7t9
91 548

105 297

97 088
374 724
109 758

908 569 261 564 585 574

163 895
7t4 27t
224 422

99 176
622 723
t23 t25

64 719
91 548

tos 297

97 088
509 386
At ao7

UNPAID
PRINCIPAL
BAI.A.NCE

CARRYING
VALUE

RELATED
ALI,OWANCE

AVERAGE
CARRYING
AMOUNT

$ $ $
91 157
36 237

9t L57
36 237

49 682
40 566

t27 394 127 394 90 248

It7 690
357 885
2t7 755

95 000
304 890
t24 25t

o,
52
93

690
995
504

47 500
t52 445
69 7aO

693 330 524 t41 169 189 269 725

tt7 690
449 042
253 992

95 000
396 047
160 488

22 690
52 995
93 504

47 500
202 t27
1 10 346

$ 820724 $ 651 s35 $ 169 189 $ SSS gZg

Income recognized during the periods presented related to impaired loans is not considered
significant for separate disclosure.

The Bank is not committed to lend additional funds to debtors whose loans have been modified.

The aggregate amount of loans owed to the Bank by employees, directors and executive officers
of the Bank and its subsidiaries and directors, executive oflicers and principal holders of the Company
and their related entities totaled approximately $4,137,000 and $4,154,000 at December 3l,2Ol7 and
2016, respectively, Activity during the years presented for these loans are approximately as follows:

2017 2016
Balance, beginning of year
Advances
Repayments
Additions - Hires with existing loans
Reductions - No longer employed

BALANCE END OFYEAR $ + 137 ooo $ + 154 ooo

$ + 1s4 ooo
1 857 000

(2 119 000)
279 000
(34 000)

$ s 760 ooo
1 660 000

(1 17s 000)

(91 000)
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDI.ARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 4 - BANK PREMISES AND EOUIPMENT

Major classifications of these assets as of December 31 are summarized as follows:

20t7 20t6

USEFUL
LIVES

IN YEARS
Land
Building and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Computer software
Automobiles
Equipment in process

TOTAL COST
Accumulated depreciation

NET BOOK VALUE

$ zese63s $
9 558 495
2 85t 7t9

455 162
1 15 936
70 434

2 959 635
9 478 737
3 316 143

365 914
105 906
95 927

5-40
3-10
3-5
3-4

16 011 381
(7 22O t34l

t6 32t 662
(7 272 s6sl

$ s 79r 247 $ g O49 097

Depreciation expense amounted to $643,782 and $566,733 tn 2Ol7 and 2016, respectively ald
is included as a component of occupancy and equipment expense on the consolidated statements of
income.

NOTE 5 - DEPOSITS

The aggregate amount of time deposits with a minimum denomination of $100,000, was
approximately $17,783,000 and $18,847,000 at December3l, 2Ol7 artd 2016. Total time deposits in
excess of the Federal insurance amount of $250,000 totaled approximately $3,636,000 and $4,245,000
at December 3l,2OL7 and 2016, respectively.

Time deposits maturing in years ending December 31, are as follows:

20t8
20t9
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter

TOTAL

$ ss 890 4es
3 739 502
I 9t2 586

774 940
1 980 890

$ ++ 2984t3

Deposits due to directors, officers, signifrcant shareholders and their affiliates approximated
$9,705,000 and $9,929,000 at December 3l,2OLT and 2016, respectively.

Overdraft demand deposits of $279,37 I arrd $262,598 respectively have been classified as
loans in the accompanying financial statements.

NOTE 6 - LINE OF CREDIT

The Bank has two lines of credit to purchase Federal funds in the amount of $11,000,000
unsecured and $9,000,000 secured by certain investment securities that expires upon cancellation.
The Bank had $-0- and $2,440,000 of Federal funds purchased drawn at December 31, 2Ol7 and
2016, respectively.
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FNB COMPAI\IY AND SUBSIDI-ARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company sponsors a a01ft) Retirement Plan ("Plan") for the Company and its subsidiaries,
which is in effect for substantially all full-time employees (if they elect to be covered). The Company, at
its discretion, may match a portion of each employee's contribution. The Company, at its discretion,
may make an additional contribution as of each December 31. Contributions to the plan amounted to
approximately $398,000 and $372,000 for 2Ol7 ond 2O16, respectively and are included in salaries
and employee benefits on the consolidated statements of income.

NOTE 8 - FEDERAL INCOME TAXES

Effective Januar5r l,2OlO, the Company elected to become a subchapter S corporation. Under
subchapter S guidelines, all federa-l taxable income is attributable to the Company shareholders
individually. The Company has passed the five year built-in gains tax period.

NOTE 9 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal
course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers and to reduce its own exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit. Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest
rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets. The contract or
notional amounts of those instruments reflect the extent of involvement the Company has in particular
classes of financia-l instruments.

The Company's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperfonnance by the other party to the
financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by
the contractual notional amount of those instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in
making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

The Company had financial instruments whose contract or notional amounts represent credit
risk of approximately the following:

DECEMBER 31
20t7 20r6

Commitments to extend credit
Standby letters of credit
Overdraft lines of credit (unfunded)
Unfunded portion of construction loans

$ 23s0000 $
$ s73 000 $
$ 5777 000 $
$ 3278000 $

4 830 000
1 037 000
5 939 000
2 379 000
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 9 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no
violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration
dates or other termination clauses, are generally variable rate in nature and may require payment of a
fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total
commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company evaluates
each customer's creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if it is
deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit, is based on management's credit
evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies, but may include real estate; accounts receivable;
inventory; property, plant, and equipment; and income-producing commercial properties. Of the
commitments to extend credit, approximately $151,000 and $490,000 were to related party borrowers
at December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016, respectively.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to support public
and private borrowing €rrrangements. Standby letters of credit generally have fixed expiration dates and
may require pa5rment of a fee. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same
as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. Collateral held for the standby letters of credit
primarily consists of certificates of deposit.

Overdraft lines of credit represent amounts available for deposit customers to overdraft deposit
accounts. Outstanding overdrafts as of December 31, 2Ol7 and 2016 were approximately $279,0O0
and $263,000, respectively. Of these outstanding overdrafts, approximately $188,000 and $184,000
were arnounts drawn on overdraft lines of credit as of December 3l , 2Ol7 and 2O 16.

FASB ASC 82O, Fair Value Measurement, clarifies that fair value is an exit price, representing
the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants. Under this guidance, fair value measurement are not
adjusted for transaction costs. This guidance establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy grves the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (kvel 1 measurements)
and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair
value hierarchy under this guidance are described below:

a Level 1 - Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets.
Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions
involving identical assets or liabilities.

l*vel 2 - Valuations for assets or liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker
markets. Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or
comparable asset or liabilities which use observable inputs other than Level 1 prices,
such as quoted prices from similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in active markets
that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by
observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and
that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 9 - FINANCI.AL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED

Fair values of assets and liabilities are presented on the consolidated balances sheets
measured on a recurring basis at December 31 , 2Ol7 and 2016 are as follows:

FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS AT REPORTING DATE USING
QUOTED
PzuCES

IN ACTIVE
MARKETS POR

IDENTICAL
ASSETS/

LIABILITIES
(LEVEL 1)

December 3l,2Ol7
Available-for-Sale Securities:

U. S. agency securities
State and municipal securities
Residential mortgage backed

securities

FAIR
VALUE

SIGNIFICANT
OTHER

OBSERVABLE
INPUTS

(LEVEL2I

SIGNIFICANT
UNOBSERVABLE

INPUTS
(LEVEL 3)

$$

$$

9096s278 $
44 765 673

20 996 925

9096s278 $
44 765 673

20 996 925
$ rso 727 876 $ $ rso 727 876 $

December 31, 2016
Available-for- Sale Securities :

U. S. agency securities
State and municipal securities
Residential mortgage backed

securities

Other ReaI Estate Owned:
Residential real estate

TOTAL OTHER REAL
ESTATE OWNED

$ r106589 $

69 03r 628 $
51 804 675

25 423 293

69 03t 628 $
sl 804 675

25 423 293
$ r+o 2s9 s96 $ $ r+o 259 s96 $

Fair value of available for sale securities is based on discounted cash flow analysis based on
observable inputs reflective of Level 2 inputs. These inputs include market quotes for similar
instruments, current market yields and offering sheets.

The following tables set forth the Company's financial assets and liabilities that were
accounted for or disclosed at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016:

PAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS USING
QUOTED
PzuCES

IN ACTIVE
MARKETS FOR

IDENTICAL
ASSETS

(LEVEL 1)

Impaired l,oans:
Commercial
Real estate
Consumer

TOTAL IMPAIRED LOANS

DECEMBER 31,
2017

SIGNIFICANT
OTHER

OBSERVABLE
INPUTS

(LEVEL 2)

SIGNIFICANT
UNOBSERVABLE

INPUTS
(LEVEL 3)

$$ $

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

163 89s $
774 272
224 422

163 895
7t4 272
228 422

$ 1 106 589

90 OOO $ 90 000

90 000 $ 90 000

3 031 499 $
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 9 . FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS USING

DECEMBER 31,
2016

QUOTED
PRICES

IN ACTIVE
MARKETS FOR

IDENTICAL
ASSETS

(LEVEL 1)

SIGNIFICANT
OTHER

OBSERVABLE
INPUTS

(LEVEL 2)

SIGNIFICANT
UNOBSERVAI}LE

INPUTS
(LEVEL 3)

Impaired [,oans:
Commercial
Real estate
Consumer

TOTAL IMPAIRED LOANS

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

rL7 690 $
449 043
253 Sq3

$$ 7),7 690
449 043
253 993
820 726

Other Real Estate Owned:
Residential real estate

TOTAL OTHER REAL
ESTATE OWNED

Goodwill 3 031 499 3 031 499

Certain financial assets and Iinancial liabilities are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring
basis; that is, the instruments are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to
fair va-lue adjustments in certain circumstances. Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value on nonrecurring basis include the following:

Goodwill

Fair market value of goodwill is determined on a nonrecurring basis in order to determine if
any impairment exists. In order to estimate the fair value of goodwill the Company uses
inputs such as values of similar entities.

Impaired Loans

Certain impaired loans are reported at fair value of underlying collateral if repayment is
expected solely from the collateral. The impaired loans are reported at fair value through a
specific valuation allowance allocation of the allowance for possible loan losses. Collateral
values are estimated using Level 2 inputs based on observable market data or Level 3 inputs
based on customized discounting criteria.

Other Real Estate Owned

OREO acquired by foreclosure is recorded at the fair va-lue of the property, less any selling
costs, as applicable, at the time of foreclosure. If necessary, carrying amounts are reduced to
reflect this value through charges to the allowance for possible credit losses upon foreclosure.
Subsequent to foreclosure, real estate is carried at the lower of its new cost basis or fair
value, less estimated costs to sell. OREO is fair valued under Level 3 at the lower of cost or
fair value based on property appraisals less estimated costs, which include both observable
and unobservable inputs, at the time of transfer and as appropriate thereafter.
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDI.AzuES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . CONTINUED

NOTE 9 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of FASB ASC 825, Financial Instruments, the
estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments are as follows:

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AT REPORTING DATE USING

QUOTED PRICES
IN ACTryE

MARKETS FOR
IDENTICAL
ASSETS/

LIABILITIES
(LEVEL I)

Cash and due from banls
Interest bearing time deposits

in banks
Securities available-for-sle
Securities held-to-maturity
Restricted equity securities
Irans receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Financial Liabilities:

Deposit liabilities
Accrued interest payable

17 7lt 42t $ $
DECEMBER 31 2017

CARRYING
AMOUNT

FAIR
VALUE

SIGNIFICANT
OTHER

OBSERVAI}LE
INPUTS

(LEVEL 2)

SIGNIFICANT
UNOBSERVABLE

INPUTS
(LEVEL 3)

$ 17 7rt 421 $ 17 7r1 421 $

69 436 000
156 727 876

1 937 t87
571 520

t'21 o2t 481
I 494 419

$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$

68 834 406
156 727 876

I 909 422
N/A

t20 367 730
| 494 819

68 834 406
156 727 476

1 909 422

120 367 730
t 494 819

323 853 158
16 640

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AT REPORTING DATE USING

$ 328 s37 2s3 $
$ r00+o $

323 853 158
16 640

$
$

QUOTED PRICES

DECEMBER 31 2016
CARRYING
AMOUNT

FAIR
VALUE

IN ACTI\'E
MARKETS FOR

IDENTICAL
ASSETS/

LIABILITIES
(LEVEL 1)

SIGNIFICANT
OTHER

OBSERVABLE
INPUTS

SIGNIFICANT
UNOBSERVABLE

INPUTS
ILEVEL 3)(LEVEL 2l

Cash and due from banks
Interest betring time deposits

in banks
Securitie s available- for-sale
Securities held-to-maturity
Restricted equity securities
Ioals receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Financial Liabilities:

Deposit liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Federal funds purchased

$ 10 774 882 $ rO 774 882 $ ro774 882 $ $

$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$

66 t24 000
146 259 596

65 824 624
t46 259 s96

N/A
1 16 028 334

I 381 731

65 824 624
146 259 596

$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$

I 16 028 334
570 220

I l5 886 163
1 381 731

$ 300 47s a77 $
$ 16677 $
$ 2440000 $

300 561 184
t6 677

2 440 000
'td aiz

2 440 000

$
$
$

300 561 184

The following methodologies and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating its
fair value disclosures for financial instruments:

Cash and Cash Equlvalents

The carrying arnounts report in the consolidated balance sheets for cash and cash
equivalents approximate those assets' fair values.

Interest Bearing Time Deposits in Banks

Fair values of interest bearing deposits in banks are estimated using discounted cash flow
analysis, based on rates currently being offered on certificates with terms approximating the
remaining term of the certificates in the portfolio.

Investment Securities and Restrlcted F,quity Securities

Fair values for investment securities are based on quoted market prices, where available. If
quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on discounted cash flow analysis
based on observable inputs, except for restricted securities where fair value equals par value
based on redemption value.
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 9 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED

Loans, Net

For both fixed and variable rate loans in 2Ol7 and 2016, fair values are estimated using
discounted cash flow analysis and current interest rates charged for the types of loans in the
portfolio.

Accrued Interest Receivable

The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable approximates fair value

Deposits

The fair values of transactional deposits accounts (interest and noninterest checking, savings
and money market accounts) are considered to be their carrying amounts. Fair values for
fixed rate certilicates of deposits are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that
applies interest rates currently being offered on certificates to a schedule of the aggregate
expected monthly maturities on time deposits.

Accrued Interest Payable

The carrying amount of accrued interest payable approximates fair value

Federal Fund Purchased

Fair value of overnight borrowings approximate those liabilities' carrying amount.

Commitments to Extend Credit

There is not material difference between the notional amount and the estimated fair value of
off-balance-sheet unfunded loan commitments which are generally priced at market at the
time of funding. Letters of credit have an estimated fair value based on fees currently charged
for similar agreements. Fees related to the unexpired term of the letters of credit are not
significant. The Company has not incurred any losses on its commitments to extend credit or
standby letters of credit during the years presented.

NOTE 10 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Company periodically carries certain assets with other financial institutions which are
subject to credit risk by the amount such assets exceed Federal deposit insurance limits. From time to
time, the Bank is also due amounts in excess of FDIC insurance limits for checks and transit items.
The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) provides deposit insurance coverage for amounts up
to $250,0OO for substantially all depository accounts. Management monitors the financial stability of
correspondent banks and considers amounts advanced in excess of FDIC insurance limits to present
no significant additional risk to the Bank.
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 11 - REGULATORY MATTERS

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the Federal
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory - and
possibly additional discretionar5r - actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct,
material effect on the linancial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory
framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve
quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under
regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative
judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank
to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of Total, Common and Tier I
capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier I capital (as
defrned) to average assets (as defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2017, that the Bank
meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.

As of December 31, 2Ol7 and 2016, the most recent notification from the Office of the
Comptroller of Currency categorized the Bank as well-capitelized under the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well-capitaJized, minimum total risk-based, Tier I risk
based common equity Tier I risk based and Tier I leverage ratios as set forth in the table must be
maintained. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have
changed the Bank's categories.

Actual capital amounts and ratios are presented in the table for the Bank (in thousands). Bank
only amounts and percentages are presented as they do not differ materially from bank holding
company amounts and percentages.

ACTUAL
FOR CAPITAL

ADEQUACY PURPOSES

TO BE WELL CAPITALIZED
UNDER PROMPT CORRECTIVE

ACTION PROVISIONS
AMOUNT RATIO AMOUNT RATIO AMOUNT RATIO

As of December 3I,2Ol7:
Tota.l fusk Based Capital

(to Risk Weighted Assets)
Tier I Capital (to Risk

Weighted Assets)
Common Equity Tier I

Capital Ratio (to Risk
Weighted Assets)

Tier I kverage Capital (to
Average Assets)

$ s2 49s

$ 50 9o4

50 904

50 904

4l.42Yo $

40.160/o $

40.160/o $

L3.29o/o $

>_ lt 724

>9 189

>7 288

> 15 316

29.25Oo/o $

>7.25Oo/o $

> t2 675

> 10 140

2 7O.Oo/o

2 8.Oo/o

2 6.50/o

2 5.Oo/o

$

$

> 5.75Oo/o $

> 4.OOOo/o $

>8239

> 19 145

As ofDecember 31, 2016:
Total Risk Based Capital

(toRiskWeightedAssets) $ 50470 40.91yo $ >rOO+O 28.6250/o $ >12336 >10.0%
Tier I Capital (to Risk
weightedAssets) $ 48921 39.660/o $ > 8173 >_6.6250/o $ > 9869 >_ 8.Oyo

Common Equity Tier I
Capital Ratio (to Risk
weightedAssets) $ 48921 39.660/o $ > 6322 >_5.125oh $ > 8018 >_ 6.50/o

Tier I kverage Capital (to
Average Assets) $ +A SZt t3.67o/o $ > 14 315 >_ 4.OOOyo $ > 17 894 > 5.0%

The above 2017 risk-weighted capital ratios for capital adequacy purposes include a .625%o
capital conservation buffer. The capital conservation buffer will be phased in over four years to 2.5Ot/o.
Financial institutions with a buffer greater thar, .625oh (2017) are not subject to limits on capital
distributions or discretionary bonus payments beyond those currently included in regulations. As
reflected above, the Bank's capital was sufficient to exceed its minimum capital requirements including
the required capital conservation buffer.
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIAzuES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 11 - REGULATORY MATTERS - CONTINUED

Although Federal Reserve regulations regarding specific capital requirements do not generally
apply to Bank Holding Companies with consolidated assets of less than $5OO million, the Federal
Reserve may apply capital guidelines to the Company on a consolidated basis, regardless of asset size,
if such action is warranted for supervisory purposes.

NOTE 12 - RESTRICTIONS ON DISTRIBUTIONS DIVIDENDS)

The Bank is subject to certain restrictions on the amount of distributions that it may pay
without prior regulatory approval. The Bank normally restricts distributions to a lesser amount. At
December 31,2OI7, retained earnings of approximately $5,900,000, were available to the Bank for
the paSrment of distributions without prior regulatory approval. This amount available is reduced
subsequent to December 3I,2Ol7 to approximately $3,900,000 since it is based on the current year
to date earnings retained plus the previous two years retained income. In addition, distributions may
not be paid by the Bank without regulatory approval if capital requirements will not be met
subsequent to the dividend.

As a subchapter S corporation, the Company may also be limited as to distributions based on
previous retained subchapter S earnings or bank capital requirements as noted above.

NOTE 13 - RESTRICTION ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

The Bank is required to maintain reserve funds in cash or on deposit with the Federal
Reserve Bank. The required reserve at December 31,2017, was approximately fi4,467,OOO.

NOTE 14 - DISCO OPERATIONS

Effective December 31, 2010, the physical assets and related title and abstract business of
Polk County Title Company, Inc. were sold. Polk County Title Company, Inc. will remain in existence
for a period of years in accordance with certain legal requirements and may generate or expend
insignifrcant amounts of cash flow during the remaining years of its existence.

NOTE 15 - COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The following table presents the components of other comprehensive income (loss) for the years
ended December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016.

YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 3I,2OI7 DECEMBER 3I,2016

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)
BEFORE

TAX
TAX

EFFECT
NET OF

TAX
BEFORE

TAX
TAX

EFFECT
NET OF

TAX
Changes in net unrealized gains

on securities available for sale
Reclassifi cation adjustment for

gains realized
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

TNCOME (IOSS)

$ 122 ss3 $

$ 122 ss3 $ $ 122 553 $ (3 162 869)

$ 122 ss3 $ (3 162 86e) $

s- g

$ (3 162 86e)

(3 162 869)
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCI,AL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

NOTE 15 - COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - CONTINUED

The following table presents the changes in each component of accumulated other
comprehensive income, net of tax, for the years ended December 3l,2Ol7 atd2016.

DOLI.ARS IN THOUSANDS)

SECURITIES
AVAII"ABLE
FOR SALE

ACCUMUI,ATED
OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE
rNcoME (LOSS)

Balance at Januar5r I,2OL6

Other comprehensive income before reclassilications

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income

Balance at December 31, 2016

Other comprehensive income before reclassifications

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income

Balance at December 3l,2OL7

NOTE 16 - BROKERAGE COMMISSION

20t6:

Gross brokerage commissions
Expenses

NET BROKERAGE COMMISSIONS

$ L 258477 $

(3 162 86e)

I 258 477

(3 162 869 )

(t eo4 3e2l

L22 553

(t 9o4 3e2l

r22 553

$ (1 781 83e) $ (1 781 839)

Net brokerage commission consists of the following for the years ended December 31, 2Ol7 and

2016 20t7
$ 1 895 601

(280 Os2)
2 076 409

(s2o 4L7l
$ 1 615 549 t755992
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Board of Directors
FNB Company and Subsidiaries
Livingston, Texas

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of FNB Company and Subsidiaries as of
and for the years ended December 3l,2Ol7 and 2016, and our report thereon dated Februaq 7,2018
which expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements appears on page 3. Our audit
was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a
whole. The consolidating information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information direcfly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Lufkin, Texas
February 7,2018

m33 www. ax leyrode, c om



CONSOLIDATING SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

December 3l,2Ol7

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks
Interest bearing deposits in banks
Securities available-for- sale
Securities held-to-maturity
Restricted equity securities
Investment in subsidiaries
L.oans, less allowance for loan losses
Bank premises and equipment, net
Accrued interest receivable
Goodwill, net
Residential real estate acquired in settlement of loans
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LI.ABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits:

Noninterest-bearing deposits
Interest-bearing deposits

TOTAL DEPOSITS

Accrued interest and other liabilities
TOTAL LI.ABILITIES

Stockholders' Equity:
Common stock
Surplus
Retained earnings
Treasury stock
Accumulated other comprehensive income

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'

EQUITY

See independent auditors' report on supplementary information.
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FNB
COMPAI{Y

THE FIRST
NATIONAL BANK
OF LIVINGSTON

$ 19 t62 $ 17 7tt 421
69 436 000

t56 727 876
t937 t87

571 s20
52 r54 20t

661 7t2

r2r o2t 481
I 79t 247
I 494 8t9
3 031 499

90 000
1 049 956

$ sz 83s o7s $ sar 863 006

$ $ 136 256 782
t92 299 633

66t 765

328 556 415

1 152 390
661 765 329 708 805

130 028
2t 40t oo4
32 860 055

(43s 938)
(1 781 839)

479 000
t2 6t2 340
40 844 700

0 78r 839)
52 173 310 52 r54 20r

$ sz 835 075 $ Sar 86s 006
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ELIMINATING
ENTRIES

CONSOLIDATED
TOIALS

$ (Le t62l

(s2154 2Ot)

(661 7651

(te t62)

(661 765)
(680 9271

(47e 000)
(t2 612 34O)
(4O 844 TOO\

$ tz 71t 427
69 436 000

t56 727 476
L937 t87

57t 520

12t O2t 481
8 79t 247
I 494 8t9
3 031 499

90 000
1 049 903

328 537 253

1 152 390
329 689 643

130 028
2t 40t oo4
32 860 055

(43s e38)
(1 781 839)

$ (sz 83s i28) $ sat 862 95s

$ (\e 162) $ 136237 620
r92 299 633

1 781 839
62 754 20tl 52 173 sto

$ (s2 83s 128) $ ssr 862 9s3
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDI.AzuES
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

December 3l,2016

FNB
COMPANY

THE FIRST
NATIONAL BANK
OF LIVINGSTON

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks
Interest bearing deposits in banks
Securities available for sale
Restricted equity securities
Investment in subsidiaries
Loans, less allowance for loan losses
Bank premises and equipment, net
Accrued interest receivable
Goodwill, net
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LI,ABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits:

Noninterest-bearing deposits
Interest-bearing deposits

TOTAL DEPOSITS

Federal funds purchased
Accrued interest and other liabilities

TOTAL LI.ABILITIES

Stockholders' Equity:
Common stock
Surplus
Retained earnings
Treasury stock
Accumulated other comprehensive income

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'

EQUITY

See independent auditors' report on supplementary information
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$ 16787 $ lo 774 882
66 t24 000

t46 259 596
570 220

50 053 310

668 136

115 886 163
9 049 097
1 381 731
3 031 500
1 031 986

$ so738227 $ 354 109 175

$ $ rL4 630 07L
185 862 587
300 492 658

668 190
2 440 000
I r23 207

668 190 304 055 865

130 028
2t 40r oo4
30 879 335

(43s e38)
(t 9o4 3921

479 000
t2 612 340
38 866 362

(t 9o4 s92l
50 070 037 50 053 310

$ so738227 $ SS+ 10e 175
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ELIMINATING
ENTRIES

CONSOLIDATED
TOTALS

$ 10 774882
66 t24 000

t46 259 596
570 220

(so os3 310)

(668 190)

115 886 163
9 049 097
1 381 731
3 031 500
1 031 932

$ (s0 738 281) $ 35+ t}g t21

$ (16 781) $ tr46t329O
185 862 587

(16 781) 300 475 877

(668 190)
2 440 000
I t23 207

(684 97tl 304 039 084

$ (16 781)

(479 O0O)
(t2 612 34O)
(38 866 362)

130 028
2t 40t oo4
30 879 335

(4ss e38)
(t 9o4 3921| 904 392

(so 0s3 310) 50 070 037

$ lso 738 28Ll $ ss+ ro9 t2L
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIAzuES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME

For tlre Year Ended December 3L,2Ol7

FNB
COMPAI{Y

THE FIRST
NATIONAL BANK
OF LIVINGSTON

Interest Income:
Interest and fees on loans
Interest on Investment Securities:

Taxable
Exempt from Federal income tax

Interest on deposits in banks
TOTALIIITEREST INCOME

Interest expense on deposits
Interest on Federal funds purchased

NET INTEREST INCOME
Provision for loan losses

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION
FOR LOAN LOSSES

Other Income:
Service charges on deposit accounts
Other service charges and fees
Equrty in earnings of subsidiaries
Insurance commissions
Brokerage commissions (net)
Gain/(loss) other
Other income

TOTAL OTHER INCOME

OtJrer E:<penses:
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy, insurance and equipment expense
ATM processing
Deposit insurance expense
Data processing
Directors fees
Postage and freight
Printing and office supplies
kgal and professional services
Telephone
Marketing
Other operating expenses

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

NET INCOME

See independent auditors' report on supplementary information.
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$$ 6 224 70L

2 179 662
1 089 678
I L67 528

10 661 569
442 tO2

1 018
LO 218 449

240 000

9 978 449

4 625 39A

4 592

1 909 860
t 74t 283

639 906
| 755992

(1 130)
46 266

4 629 990 6 092 L77

1 086

I t25

6 365 47L
L 427 688

737 766
159 995
831 786
185 819
134 066
2t6 to7
247 630
tLL 764
90 665

936 471
2 2tt Lt 445 228

$ +627779 $ 4 625 398
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ELIMINATING
ENTRIES

CONSOLIDATED
TOTAIS

$ $ o 2247oL

2 t79 662
1 089 678
L L67 528

t-o 661 569
442 tO2

I O18
lo 2L8 449

240 000

9 978 449

1 909 860
| 74t 2a3

(4 625 3e8)
639 906

L 755 992
(1 130)

50 858
(4 625 398) 6 096769

6 365 47L
| 427 688

737 766
159 995
831 786
185 819
134 066
216 ro7
244 7L6
tLL 764
90 665

937 596
Lt 447 439

$ (4 625 3e8) $ + 627 779
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FNB COMPAI{Y AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME

For the Year Ended December 3L,2016

FNB
COMPA}IY

THE FIRST
NATIONAL BANK
OF LIVINGSTON

Interest Income:
Interest and fees on loans
Interest on Investment Securities:

Taxable
Exempt from Federal income tax

Interest on deposits in banks
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME

Interest expense on deposits
Interest on Federal funds purchased

NET II{TEREST INCOME
Provision for loan losses

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION
FOR LOAN LOSSES

Other Income:
Service charges on deposit accounts
Other service charges and fees
Equrty in earnings of subsidiaries
Insurance commissions
Brokerage commissions (net)
Other income

TOTAL OTHER INCOME

Other Expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy, insurance and equipment expense
ATM processing
Deposit insurance expense
Data processing
Directors fees
Postage and freight
Printing and ofiice supplies
kgal and professional services
Telephone
Marketing
Other operating er(penses

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE
FEDERAL INCOME TA)(ES

Federal income taxes (benefit)
NET INCOME

See independent auditors' report on supplementary information
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$$ 6 23t 374

1 905 446
1 141 816

976 797
10 255 433

44t tLg
1 205

9 813 110
287 500

9 525 610

4 674 568

t7 441

2 004 564
L 574 87L

453 074
1 615 549

58 056
4 692 009 5 706 tr4

1 056

a 92t

5 883 560
1 339 360

631 549
113 500
841 430
r90 473
116 361
t84 732
224999
119 713
1 16 435
814 539

9 977 10 576 651

4682 032 4 655 073
(r9 4941

4 682 032 4 674 567
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ELIMINATING
EI{TRIES

CONSOLIDATED
TOTALS

$

(4 674 s68)

$ o 23L 374

L905 446
1 141 816

976 797
10 255 433

44t rta
I 205

9 813 110
287 500

9 525 610

2 004 564
L 574 a7t

453 074
1 615 549

75 497
5 723 s55@ 674 5681

5 883 560
1 339 360

631 549
113 500
841 430
r90 473
116 361
r84732
226 055
119 713
I 16 435
823 460

10 586 628

(4 674 568l, 4662 537
(r9 4941

(4 674 ffi81 4 682 031
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CONSOLIDATING SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF LIVINGSTON AND SUBSIDIARIES
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THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF LIVINGSTON AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

December 3l,2Ol7

THE FIRST
NATIONAL BANK
OF LIVINGSTON

ASSEf,S
Cash and due from banks
Interest bearing deposits in banks
Securities available-for- sale
Securities held-to-maturity
Restricted equity securities
Levestment in subsidiaries
l,oans, less allowance for loan losses
Bank premises and equipment, net
Accrued interest receivable
Goodwill, net
Residential real estate in settlement of loans
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits:

Noninterest-bearing deposits
Interest-bearing deposits

TOTAL DEPOSITS
Accrued interest and other liabilities

TOTAL LI.ABILITIES
Stockholders' Equit5r:

Common stock
Surplus
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

See independent auditors' report on supplementar5r information.
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$ t7
69

156
1

t2l
8
1

3

7LL
436
727
937
57t
435
02r
784
494
031
90

o25

421
000
876
t87
520
930
481
230
819
499
000
1061

$ saz 267 069

$ t36 728 724
t92299 633
329 028 357

1 084 511
330 112 868

479 000
t2 612 340
40 844 700
(1 781 839)

52 t54 20t

$ 382267 069
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CHURCH
STREET

FINANCIAL

POLK COUNTY
TITLE COMPAI{Y,

INC.
ELIMINATING

ENTRIES
CONSOLIDATED

TOTALS

$ 2e886s $ 36 772 $ (33s 037) $ t7 7rr 42r
69 436 000

156 727 876
t937 187

577 520
(43s e3O)

7 0t7
r2r o2t 48L

8 79t 247
1 494 819
3 031 499

90 000
1 049 956L60 924 (t36 O74)

$ 466806 $ 36 r72 $ (eO7 041) $ 381 863 006

$ $ (4Tr e42) $ tso 2s6782
t92299 633

(471e42l 328 556 415
1 152 39067 879

67 879 (47t 9421 329 708 805

350 000

$

48 927

2 000
111 795
(77 623)

(3s2 O0O)
(111 7es)

28 696

479 000
t2 612 340
40 844 700
(1 781 839)

398927 36 t72 (4s5 099) 52 154 20t

g 466 806 $ 36 L72 $ (9O7 O4t) $ SAt 863 006
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THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF LIVINGSTON AND SUBSIDI,ARIES
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

December 3l,2OL6

THE FIRST
NATIONAL BANK
OF LIVINGSTON

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks
Interest bearing deposits in banks
Securities available for sale
Restricted equity securities
Investment in subsidiaries
Loans, less allowance for loan losses
Bank premises and equipment, net
Accrued interest receivable
Goodwill, net
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LI.ABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits:

Noninterest-bearing deposits
Interest-bearing deposits

TOTAL DEPOSITS
Federal funds purchased
Accrued interest and other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
Stockholders' Equity:

Common stock
Surplus
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

TOTAL LI.ABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

See independent auditors' report on supplementary information.
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$ 10
66

146

115
9
1

3
1

774
t24
259
570
420
886
030
381
031
015

882
000
596
220
974
163
249
73t
500
708

$ es+ 495o23

$ 115 083 821
185 862 587
300 946 408

2 440 000
1 055 305

304 44L 7t3

479 000
t2 612 340
38 866 362
(t 9o4 392l,

50 053 310

$ 354 495 023
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CHURCH
STREET

FINANCIAL

POLK COUNTY
TITLE COMPAI{Y,

INC.
ELIMINATING

ENTRIES
CONSOLIDATED

TOTALS

$ zza+zg $ 36 r72 $ (312 601) $ 10 774882
66 t24 000

146 259 596
570 220

{42O e74l

18 848
115 886 163

9 049 097
1 381 731
3 031 500
1 031 986t56 597 (140 319)

$ 4s1 874 $ 36 tr2 $ (873 894) $ 3s4 109 lzs

$ $ (4ss 7so) $ 114 630 071
185 862 587

(453 7s0) 300 492 658
2 440 000
t r23 20767 902

67 902 (453 750) 304 055 865

350 000

$

33 972

2 000
tl1 795
(77 6231

(3s2 OOO)

(111 7e5)
43 651

479 000
t2 6t2 340
38 866 362
(1904 3921

383 972 36 172 (420 r44l 50 053 310

$ 4sL 874 $ s6 rz2 $ (87s 894) $ 354 109 17s
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THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF LIVINGSTON AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME

For the Year Ended December 3l,2Ol7

THE FIRST
NATIONAL BANK
OF LIVINGSTON

Interest Income:
Interest and fees on loans
Interest on Investment Securities:

Taxable
Exempt from Federal income tax

Interest on deposits in banks
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME

Interest expense on deposits
Interest on Federal funds purchased

NET INTEREST INCOME

Provision for loan losses
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION

FOR LOAN I,OSSES

Other Income:
Service charges on deposit accounts
Other service charges and fees

Equity in earnings of subsidiaries
Insurance commissions
Brokerage commissions (net)

Management fee

Gain/(loss) other
Other income

TOTAL OTHER INCOME

Other Expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy, insurance and equipment expense
ATM processing
Deposit insurance expense
Data processing
Directors fees

Postage and freight
Printing and olfice supplies
Legal and professional serrrices
Telephone
Marketing
Management fee paid
Other operating elq)enses

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

NET INCOME

See independent auditors' report on supplementary information.
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$ o 224701

2 t79 662
I 089 678
I t67 528

10 661 569
442 tO2

1 018
to 278 449

240 000

9 97a 449

1 909 860
| 74t 2a3

639 955

t 755 992

(1 130)
190 266

6 236 226

5 172 535
1 393 233

737 766
159 995
807 48t
t73 819
130 591
202 909
235 517
to2 624
79 254

L 57r 046
822 507

Lr 589 277

$ + 62s 398

fg;il$L_u*Y*F.g,P,s;:



CHURCH
STREET

FINANCIAL
POLK CO. TITLE
COMPA}IY,INC.

ELIMINATING
EI{TRIES

CONSOLIDATED
TOTAIS

$ $ $ $ 6 22470r

2 L79 662
1 089 678
I t67 52A

10 661 569
4421,O2

1 018
to 2t8 449

240 000

I 974 449

639 906

L 57t 046

(63e ess)

(1 571 046)

(1.+4 OOO)

1 909 860
L 74L 283

639 906
I 755992

(1 130)
46 266

2 2tO952 (2 355 001) 6 092 t77

L t92936
178 455 (144 000)

(1 s71 046)

6 365 471
| 427 688

737 766
159 995
831 786
185 819
134 066
2t6 to7
247 630
LLt 764
90 665

936 471

24 305
12 000
3 475

13 198
12 113
9 140

11 411

1 13 964
| 570 997 (1 715 0.+6) tt 445 224

$ oss sss $ $ (639 9ss) $ 4 625 398

50
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THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF LIVINGSTON AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME

For the Year Ended December 3l,2016

THE FIRST
NATIONAL BANK
OF LIVINGSTON

Interest Income:
Interest and fees on loans
Interest on Investment Securities:

Taxable
Exempt from Federal income tax

Interest on deposits in banks
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME

Interest expense on deposits
Interest on Federal funds purchased

NET INTEREST INCOME

Provision for loan losses
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION

FOR LOAN IOSSES

Other Income:
Service charges on deposit accounts
Other service charges and fees

Equity in eamings of subsidiaries
Insurance commissions
Brokerage commissions (net)

Management fee

Other income
TOTAL OTHER INCOME

Other Expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupanry, insurance and equipment expense
ATM processing
Deposit insurance expense
Data processing
Directors fees

Postage and freight
Printing and ollice supplies
kgal and professional services
Telephone
Marketing
Management fee paid
Other operating expenses

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE FEDERAL INCOME TAXES
Federal income taxes (benefits)

NET INCOME

See independent auditors' report on supplementary information.
51

$ o 231 374

7 905 446
1 141 816

976 797
10 255 433

44t tt8
1 205

9 813 110

2a7 500

I 525 610

2 004 564
I 574 871

553 505

833 369

188 056
5 154 365

4 842 093
1 298 615

631 549
113 500
802 934
t78 473
tL2 76a
175 365
2tt 965
107 051
100 895
72t gra
727 776

to o24 902

4 655 073
(1 I 4941

f&il$.ll"LrJ#8.9,P,F;:

$ + 674 567



a

CHURCH
STREET

FINANCIAL
POLK CO. TITLE ELIMINATING

ENTRIES
CONSOLIDATED

TOTALSCOMPAI{Y INC

$ $ $ $ 6 23L 374

L 905 446
1 141 816

976 797
10 255 433

44t tt8
| 205

9 813 110

287 500

9 525 610

453 074
742 tal
72L 9L8

(5s3 sos)

(72L elsl
(130 O0O)

2 004 564
| 574 87t

453 074
1 615 550

58 056
t957 r73 (L 4O5 4231' 5 706 115

L O4L 467
t70 745,

38 496
L2 000
3 593
I 367

13 034
t2 662
15 540

86764

(130 000)

(72r elsl

5 883 560
1 339 360

631 549
113 500
841 430
L90 473
116 361
L84 732
224999
LL9 7t3
116 435

814 540
1 403 668 (8519 18) to 576 652

553 505 (s53 sos) 4 655 073
(L9 4941

$ (5s3 sos) $

52

$ sse sos $

,&il$llJ,ffmg,P,Er:

4 674 567



Form FR Y-5

FNB Company

Livingston, Texas

Fiscal Year Ending December 31,20!7

Report ltem

1: The BHC does prepare an annual reportfor its shareholders. Enclosed are two copies ofthe annual report.

2af Orgahization Chart

No LEI is available for any entity listed above.

FNB Company

Livingston, Texas

lncorporated in Texas

The First National Bank of Livingston

Livingston, Texas

Polk County Title Co., lnc

Livingston, Texas

in Texas

TBL lnsurance Agency, lnc.

Livingston, Texas

in Texas
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